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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. (gavel). . .The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for March 13 th is
now in session. The time is 1:39. Good afternoon, Members. At this time, the Chair would like
to recognize the Members of the Committee. We do have Member Carroll, Member Baisa,
Member Couch, Member Victorino, Member White, and Chairman Mateo. Excused at this time
are Members Cochran and Member Hokama. Members, we do have a busy agenda this
afternoon. At this time, I'd like to introduce the Administration personnel that are here. Of
course, we do have the Mayor of the County, Mayor Arakawa.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Good afternoon.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Our Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz. From Corporation Counsel, we do have
Scott Hanano as well as -MS. THOMSON: Richelle Thomson.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Richelle Thomson. I should know your name already, but--so, and we do
have the Finance Director, Mr. Agsalog. Supporting the Committee, we do have
Scott Kaneshina as well as Camille Sakamoto. At this time, the Chair would like to recognize
the presence of Member Cochran, good afternoon.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then also joining the Administration, we do have the Deputy of Parks,
Mr. Pat Matsui. Members, we have several items on the agenda. At this time, the Chair would
like to take public testimony. For those of you that are providing public testimony this
afternoon, you do have three minutes to provide your testimony, one minute to conclude. If you
can state your name, the organization that you represent, the Chair would and the Committee
would appreciate that. If every one of us could turn our cell phone to the silent mode or turn it
off. Okay, the first testifier this afternoon is Jacob Verkerke.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
MR. VERKERKE: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. My name is Jacob Verkerke. I'm here in my capacity as the President of the
Waikapu Community Association, and I'd like to offer some testimony on behalf of the
community of Waikapu. The Waikapu Country Town community feels--and, and you've heard
just from me before in testimony before the General Plan Committee—feels besieged from many
sides, and now that includes the County proposed operation center and the County baseyard
proposed for 100 acres along the Waiale Road extension. Mayor Arakawa was kind enough to
come to the community association last night and presented his vision for this project. The
attendance was quite good. We had a lot of very active discussion during the evening. The
presentation included his vision of combining four baseyards for four different departments, a
main police station, fire station and training facility and potentially Emergency Management
Center. The community expressed concerns on the impact on traffic, noise, the impact on
agricultural lands, and the country town character of Waikapu. The community feels strongly
that more time needs to be taken to study the impact on the community and to explore some
alternatives that were suggested at the meeting last night. Those alternatives include, placing the
baseyard operations in the triangle formed by Mokulele and Kuihelani Highways or swapping
with the proposed 220-acre Central Maui Regional Park to be acquired adjacent to the subject
property. The community is also concerned that its proposal is getting ahead of the completion
of the Maui Island Plan which will have a major impact on the long-term future of Waikapu
community. Therefore, the community asks, what's the rush? Our request is to defer this
decision to allow time for three items. First of all, the completion of the Maui Island Plan.
Secondly, to complete negotiations with A&B for the purchase of the 220 acres designated for
the regional park and to return with the request to purchase both properties so that there is
assurance that the whole 320 acres can be master planned with consideration for the cumulative
effect on the community, taking Waiale and the Waikapu Country Town projects into
consideration. The third, to examine alternative locations for the baseyard operations. I
mentioned two that came up in the discussion last night. I think there's probably some other
properties that can be looked at. And do this analysis and evaluation in a thorough and
professional manner The Mayor, as you have heard, has issued a call to be bold. The
community supports this --
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MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. VERKERKE: --I'm almost finished. The community supports this as long bold does not come to
mean rash. One can be bold and be pono at the same time. The Waikapu community asks for
the Council's help to make sure that it's not going to be—the community is not going to be
obliterated by all these forces gathering around it. Please defer this request to allow time to do
this right and to protect this precious small town community. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? I just have one. So,
you kind of agree that by consolidating all of the County baseyard is a good idea?
MR. VERKERKE: From an operational perspective, it makes sense. And, and it gives evidence of
what we hear a lot that the government should think more like business. But there is another
aspect of government that, that I'm worried is going to get lost and that's the social impact on the
community, and, and I'm really worried that that is not sufficiently considered in the operational
decisions that seem to be driving this request.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So one of the alternative is swapping part of the so-called big
park with this particular piece to put in the baseyard?
MR. VERKERKE: Correct. The suggestion was made perhaps place the baseyard and the operations
center as a whole more along the highway, and allow the park to form a buffer between the
community and, and that operation center. I think that is a very good suggestion that's worthy of
further examination. But it's really not meaningful to do that until we have assurances and some
agreement with A&B that that purchase indeed is going to proceed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One more question. In regards to the Maui Island Plan itself, the 100 acres is-is it designated within the Urban Growth Boundary?
MR. VERKERKE: It very much depends on which version of your maps you look at. The
Director's 2010 maps exclude this property and, and leave it in Agriculture. I think the most
recent version of the maps that Director Spence is going to discuss with you tomorrow have
adjusted the boundary to include that 100 acres.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, as Urban?
MR. VERKERKE: As Urban, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. VERKERKE: And the community sense is perhaps a better designation for the community is the
Country Town Growth Boundary rather than an Urban Growth Boundary. So there's, there's-it's a complex issue.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you, again,
Jacob.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Dick Mayer.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Council. I had a--I was
fortunate to go to the meeting last night in Waikapu and heard the presentation, and I think what
Jacob just said is, is pretty reflective of what the community was, was saying at the meeting. I
think that the.. .and I have here the maps that you'll be looking at tomorrow on the Urban
Growth Boundary, and again, he reflected exactly what the situation was. The most recent one
includes this area within the Urban Growth Boundary. The GPAC and the Planning Commission
and the 2010 does not include it. I would urge the Council to go ahead and seriously consider
purchasing this particular parcel.I think 100 acres at 2.7 million would be a bargain, but not for
the baseyard. I think given the amount of traffic that will be generated by the 2,550 houses in
Waiale, the 1,450 houses in Atherton's property, Waikapu area. Four thousand total units, it, the
baseyard would be incompatible I think in terms of traffic with those--those, those very
urbanized areas. I think that the possibility is to use what the Maui Island Plan does designate it.
If you look up here for a second, I know you can't see it all the detail, but along, along Mokulele
Highway either near the sugar mill itself in the present baseyard, the smaller baseyard here or in
the much larger one with the race, raceway is the old Puunene Airport. All three of those areas
designated in the Maui Island Plan for Urban Growth Boundaries, and the baseyard would
probably be much more appropriate there with the other activities that will be going on in that,
that area rather than cheek to jowl to the Waikapu/Waiale community. I would urge you to buy
that land though because I think a) it's a good price; and b) I think it would be an excellent site
for a future high school near the—with Waiale, with Waikapu growing, 4,000 housing, Maui Lani
will have another 50--another 1,000 units, Kehalani another seven, eight hundred units. Student
population will grow and there needs to be a place for a high school and this place next to the
regional park near the communities would be a good site, and I think land banking it whenever
that high school is gonna have to be built would be a wise decision by the County, and I think
there are alternative sites for the baseyard near Puunene along Mokulele Highway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for Mr. Mayer at this time? So you're
recommending that this Council take a really good look and purchase this land?
MR. MAYER: I think it's-- I think it would be a very wise buy, 100 acres, relatively flat land near the
urban area and, and land bank it for future County uses. I think the County will have uses as the
years go by, but I don't think a baseyard is necessarily the best use next to the urban area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Any more questions, Members?Seeing none, thank
you again.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Glenn Adolpho.
MR. ADOLPHO: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla, Committee Members. My name is Glenn Adolpho
and I am a board member for the Waikapu Community Association. I am also a committee
member for the Waikapu Gardens Homeowners Association which is right off Waiale Road, and
I'm here today testifying as an individual resident of Waikapu Gardens. And I'm testifying
again, regarding Item BF-67 on the agenda today, and this is the acquisition for funding to
acquire the 100-acre County baseyard. It is with great concern County[sic] Members that I come
before you this day to ask this Committee to support deferring this approval at this time for this
budget item until more details of this project has been released and the community has been
given adequate time to review the plans, to get feedback, and to comment on the effects that it
will have on our Waikapu community Last night, again as you heard from the other two
testifiers, our community for the first time was able to meet with Mayor Arakawa to look over
the plans of this proposed baseyard, and there were many serious concerns raised. Some of the
members expressed feelings regarding the, the project, the impact on the community, the current
location being at Waiale and Waiko Road is gonna be a very busy intersection. That taken into
consideration that Waiale Road will be in the future extended out towards Maalaea, passing
Maui Tropical Plantation, and more traffic will be coming from those areas into Wailuku. And
also, the concern about sirens going off past the subdivision and housing area in that area at all
hours of the day. We also were concerned about the lack of details. Maps, road outlets, traffic
mitigation, and safety measures that need to be in place in order for this to work successfully for
our community. Some of the concerns from our Waikapu Gardens homeowners, we have
410 homes in the Waikapu Gardens. Waiale is the only in, exit and entrance into our
subdivision. Current plans for the extension of Waiale does not include any stoplights. Now if
you take 400 homes times that by two cars on an average for each home, that's about 820 trips
on Waiale Road alone from our subdivision. In the future plans, we would like to see a stoplight
out there to make it safe for our people, our children to go to school and our young families to go
to work. There are about 75 homes right off of Waiale Road that, that's in our subdivision. They
will be tremendously impacted by the noise, congestion from the traffic on Waiale Road.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. ADOLPHO: In closing, I just wanna say, please defer this budget item for now, include our
community in the planning process and give us time to adequately review the maps and to give
feedback, and to listen to the concerns of the community because ultimately we will be the ones
that will have to live by the impacts of all this traffic. And if you do approve, please make sure
there's money in for our stoplight at Waikapu Gardens to keep it safe. Thank you and mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? I'll go Member Couch
followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Adolpho, for coming. You say you would
like a traffic signal and that would be Waiko and Waiale or...?
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MR. ADOLPHO: No, it would be right on Waiale Road fronting the Waikapu Gardens Subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which entrance? There's three.
MR. ADOLPHO: The middle one would probably be the best at this time because -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. ADOLPHO: --it would allow the other two entrances to come to one area and then exit out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, would you be adverse to having a roundabout there that's
cheaper?
MR. ADOLPHO: I think that's something for our community to discuss and our homeowners
association of Waikapu.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. That was basically my same question, you know, I
was going to ask, but the roundabout I think you gotta understand this is a main thoroughfare.
This extension will go all the way from Honoapiilani Highway all the way in. And it's going to
be a main thoroughfare. We're looking at heavy traffic which some people are still stuck with
roundabouts, not with that kind of a situation where you have families and all these people
coming in and out of that area. And right now, that's the only exit onto the highway. They do
not have any other means of getting to Honoapiilani Highway other than Waiale. The other
question I had for you, Mr. Adolpho, was last night the other issue that seemed to be, be brought
up is noise factors in the, in the area with this development and the 4,000 homes that will come
around that, that whole area.
MR. ADOLPHO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You as a board member and your board has discussed this, and
your feeling is unless we mitigate some of that and move it towards Kuikahi or
Kuihelani Highway, you guys would be much better prefer--much better prefer that move,
moving towards the highway on the other side, Kuihelani.
MR. ADOLPHO: Okay, I'm sorry, Councilman Victorino. I serve on both the Waikapu Community
Association -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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MR. ADOLPHO: --Board and also as the Waikapu Gardens Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh huh.
MR. ADOLPHO: So, I'm not sure which committee you're, you're referring to.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I know there were so many guys -MR. ADOLPHO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --talking last night and it was like I'm from here, I'm from there
because the three communities were together, right?
MR. ADOLPHO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so--but the general consensus was moving it closer to the
highway, Kuihelani?
MR. ADOLPHO: That was one suggestion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. ADOLPHO: Another suggestion was like our President, Jacob Verkerke, mentioned, swapping the
area where the regional park is planned, thereby putting all the emergency vehicles and things on
that area and, and using the park as a buffer between Waikapu.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's exactly what I'm saying, the switch.
MR. ADOLPHO: Okay, right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So both, both actually went...
MR. ADOLPHO: That was one of the suggestions, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay. Thank you. I appreciate it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MR. ADOLPHO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Last testifier to sign up for public testimony is Laura Kaakua.
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MS. KAAKUA: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and Council members. I believe--I'm here to speak
on the first agenda item, the purchase of the Paukukalo Coastal Wetlands along Ka'ehu Bay.
And you know I know that this Committee has already heard about the resources there and the
community support behind the purchase, so I just wanted to let this Committee know that I'm
available, again, as a resource person. Also, here today, as this Committee would like to serve as
a resource person is Hokulani Holt, who is Kumu Hula and President of Kauahea, Incorporated,
who may be able to speak about the community's willingness to partner with the County to help
steward this property. And also here today is Duke Sevilla, who has been involved in many of
the community efforts on the property and is a adjacent landowner. Again, I'm Laura Kaakua.
I'm the Native Lands Project Manager for The Trust for Public Land in support of this effort.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time? Again,
she'll be utilized as a resource person when we take up the first item. Thank you, Laura. Is there
anyone in the audience that would like to provide public testimony? Please come forward,
identify yourself, organization that you represent, and once you're done if you can see the
Secretary in the lobby to sign up.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: My name is Mitch Skaggerberg. I'm here to testify as a homeowner in
Waikapu Gardens. It's good to see all our friends here in the Council. I--very difficult situation
for us in Waikapu. I wanna say that I'm opposed to the baseyard in the Waikapu area for the
following reasons. One, the community plans have designated a buffer zone between Waikapu
to retain the rural area, the quiet, the atmosphere of the ag. This would change that dramatically.
Second, there are other alternatives to look at before we decide. One of the things, A&B, is my
understanding, owes the County 50 acres of land. They were gonna give us the land at
Pomaikai School, burial sites, that's free land. You've already paid for that. If you can get that
50 acres over by the intersection of where Kings Cathedral is,there's like a triangle area over
there. They--according to some testimony last night, they may be amenable to perhaps giving
you that 50 or 100 acres there. It's something worth looking at as an alternative as well as
Mokulele baseyard. The third consideration is half the homes in the Gardens, Waikapu Gardens,
are four hundred to five hundred thousand dollar homes, very expensive for most of the young
families. And some of you as grandparents may have helped them with the money to buy those
homes. A hundred and fifty kids born in the last three years there. In other words, it's a
community that needs to be protected with quiet enjoyment and all the amenities of a rural
community. This baseyard would drastically alter that, that right to quiet enjoyment. The last, I
don't think centralization is a great idea. The cost of the land is the tip of the iceberg, fifty to a
hundred million dollars to--my just, my rude estimates of building it out. Now we're in an era
where our citizens are asking for budget restraints, keeping their tax bill down. This seems to fly
in the face of that and I think it should be a heavy consideration as we go forward
here,anddecentralization I think is better with the Police and the Fire service anyway. Smaller
units, we have the technology now to accomplish the efficiencies that the Mayor would like
through our computers and our sophisticated inventory equipment, so we can get equipment
around pretty quick. It's a very difficult time I think to be undertaking this size of a task with
our economy and there really, the fiscal part of it is daunting to say the least. So thank you for
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listening to us and we're here to help you as you need us. Please feel free to call on me or any of
the other testifiers. Aloha and God blessings with you as always.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? I'd just like to clarify some things
that you mentioned, Mr. Skatterberg[sic]. One of 'em is that the 50 acres that you mentioned in
Maui--as part of the industrial subdivision approved some time back, two years, 50 acres were to
provide affordable housing, a community center and a small park within the particular area that
you talk about. And you mentioned about four, five hundred thousand dollar homes in Waikapu
Gardens basically, it's probably the market value, and.50 percent of those homes were set at 225
to 275 as affordable housing maybe four, five years ago. So I thought I'd correct some of the
statement.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: Just comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: The actual, the four to five hundred thousand was the actual price paid by it.
The market price at that time for those homes, those other 50 percent, were up around 600,000.
And 550 I know because I bought one at -CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to stop this thing right here, -MR. SKAGGERBERG: --okay, but just that
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --just to let you know that the affordable housing prices don't deviate. It's
going to remain between 225, 275.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: Oh yes, that 50 percent would at that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: Thank you. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions? Any more questions for the testifier? Thanks again for
your public testimony. Is there anyone else that wanna provide public testimony at this time, if
you could move up to the lectern. Give us your name, organization that you represent.
MR. PILTZ: Aloha. My name is Randy Piltz. I'm a resident of Waikapu and I'm also a member of the
Waikapu Community Association. I'm speaking really on behalf of myself and my family.
We've been in the Waikapu community for quite a while. We're very sensitive as to what
happens to our community. I'm also concerned as to what happens to this County. It was the
Mayor last night brought out some very, very good points as to what's happening to our facilities
that we have today. The police station, the fire station, the areas that we have facilities that may
be inundated by a tsunami should that happen. And by moving to an area more remote, away
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from the ocean would be something that would be most desirable. The opportunity to obtaining
some land for a service facility is also an opportunity right now. Some of the families that
testified about the noise in the area if we had this facility would -- it happened when Waikapu
Gardens came in, there were a lot of resistance that we're gonna have a lot of traffic, we gonna
have a lot of noise, but it did happen. We're growing. We're a growing community and we need
to take care of things. Right now I say that piece of property of 100 acres should be obtained
now and master planned when we get the other 200 acres from A&B. We can't master plan
something we don't already have. So I ask that each of you think about it. This is for the future
of our County. We're not talking five years from now. We're talking 20 to 50 years from
now.what we need in the future. So I ask you to think about it. Let's get that piece of property
now that's available, because land prices will not remain as low as it is today.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Piltz at this time? I have one.
Thank you, Randy, for being here. In regards to the acreage that we haven't purchased yet, the
242 acres, and of course, this 100 acres, you know, sometestifiers this afternoon testified, in fact,
one said buy the 100 acres and if we should do that and the 242 from A&B that we have already
budgeted for. What is your comment if we should move the County--Central Maui Baseyard for
the County of Maui closer to Kuihelani and that way you have a 100 plus acres as park makai
side of the proposed highway and another 100 acres on the mauka side of that highway?
MR. PILTZ: Well, my understanding is the 200 acres that's gonna be adjoining the 100 acres that we
get,it'd be one parcel that go all the way down towards Kuihelani. And as mentioned, and I'm
sure supported by many of the members in our community, if we could take the industrial part of
it closer to the highway, which I would say the industrial part would be the police station, the fire
station and also the service center, and brought that closer to the highway where you have heavy
equipment. That makes good sense. But right now we're talking about 100 acres -CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, not -MR. PILTZ: --we can't plan for the others.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --yeah, yeah, I understand that and it would compliment 80 plus acres that
State of Hawaii is looking--Senator Tsutsui is looking at, you know, adjoining the 242. So
basically you're looking at maybe 300, maybe 400 acres of maybe park land as well as a
baseyard somewhere.
MR. PILTZ: It makes good sense.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again, you know, the idea of having a master plan in regards to all of the
lands that we may own one day is a good idea.
MR. PILTZ: Very good idea and I applaud you for thinking about it, thinking about our future for this
County.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions for Mr. Piltz?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --no questions. Sorry no, no questions, thank you. But Chair, just I
wish I could see a map of what -- are we, will we be receiving something?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Because I'm kind of lost and it would be nice to reference -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --what testifiers were talking about, but I guess we'll be receiving
this soon. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you. The last testifier to sign up, I guess, is Marilyn Chapman.
MS. CHAPMAN: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. Aloha everyone and excuse my last person. I left and
had to come back. I'm here today as a resident of Maui County for 20 years to talk about
curbside recycling and the importance to the people in my neighborhood as well as many other
residents. I live in North Kihei. There's hundreds of homes in this area and we are a long
distance from the nearest drop box facility that's supplied for the residents. We have, as
everyone knows, twice a week pickup on our, our rubbish bin and in my home as well as the
neighbors in my neighborhood, it's a very mature neighborhood, fully 50 percent of our rubbish
is green waste, and in reality it's more than that when you start looking at the palm fronds and
things that are too large for our rubbish bins. So green waste is a really very, very important
piece of the diversion part of the rubbish and recycling and diverting from the landfill But in
addition, our plastics, our aluminum, our glass, our paper, and much of this I try to recycle
myself, but sometimes because of volume, it becomes impossible. So, what I'm here to report is
of my own rubbish. Fully 50 percent of a week is green waste. Of the remainder 50 percent
about 20 percent of that is trash. So we're really looking at maybe 30 gallons of rubbish out of
two, 96-gallon bins weekly that would go to the landfill from my home rather than the two,
96-gallons. The rest of it could be diverted. Now, the drop box facilities are a convenience. We
thank you all as residents having that available; however, many of us as you know, work many
hours. Myself, I work 60 plus hours a week. Some people work multiple jobs and work even
more hours than that and it does make it difficult as well as the volume of material. So I just
wanted to come and place my plea at your feet and say, please make it available at our homes
even if it costs us more. I think everyone is willing to pay a little more for these kind of services.
And these are services are available to the condominiums and our visitors and it's the right thing
to do to make it available for us residents as well. I thank you very much for allowing me the
opportunity to speak to you, and mahalo.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Chair would like to make one last announcement. If there is anyone that would like to
provide testimony at this time? Seeing none, Members, if there's no objections, Chair would like
to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY....
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The first item on the agenda this afternoon is BF-66, Amending
Fiscal Year 2012 Budget: Purchase of Paukukalo Coastal Wetlands/Ka' ehu, Ka'ehu Bay (Open
Space Natural Resources, Cultural Resources, and Scenic Views Preservation Fund). And the
purpose of the revised proposed bill is to amend the Fiscal Year2012 Budget, relating to the
Open Space, Natural Resources, Cultural Resources, and Scenic Views Preservation Fund by
adding a proviso to purchase approximately 63.701 acres situated at Ka' ehu Bay in Paukukalo
for $996,000 and a revised proposed resolution to authorize acquisition of 63.701 acres.
Members, in your binder you will find a correspondence from the Director of Finance, dated
March 6, 2012, in response to a letter dated February 27, 2012, from the Committee. And
Members, for this agenda'd item, the agenda for this item has been properly noticed for
executive session if needed. If executive session is needed, Chair will entertain a motion to enter
in executive session pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(4), Hawaii Revised Statutes, to consult with
legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining to the powers, duties, privileges, immunities,
and liabilities of the County, the Council, and the Committee.
ITEM BF-66:

AMENDING FY 2012 BUDGET: PURCHASE OF PAUKUICALO
COASTAL WETLANDS/KA`EHU BAY (OPEN SPACE, NATURAL
RESOURCES, CULTURAL RESOURCES, AND SCENIC VIEWS
PRESERVATION FUND) (CC 12 25)
-

CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to call on Mr. Baz, for opening comments
followed by Mr. Agsalog.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and good afternoon, and we appreciate your Committee's review of
this item as it has been discussed on a couple of occasions prior. We're hoping for a resolution
with this afternoon's meeting. We have the Finance Director here as well as our Corporation
Counsel has been working on the acquisition, doing the due diligence, and we also have, of
course, you heard Laura Kaakua from The Trust for Public Land as well as Parks Department
here as resources for any questions that you might have. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Agsalog.
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MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair Again, we reiterate our support with this particular subject
matter. Mr. Bar mentioned that our--we have been, we have had our Corp. Counsel been
working on this one as far as have our staff also been working on the due diligence. Mr. Parsons
is here to answer more questions if you will have any.as well as Trust for Public Lands. We are
all here to answer the concerns that the Members might have, and I also transmit to you, as you
have said earlier, the written questions for the questions you had the first meeting we had two
weeks ago. So I will be here and with my staff, Mr. Chair, to answer any questions you guys
might have. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, just let me say that during the last couple of weeks,
you know the Chair, as well as Staff, worked with Administration to clear up some, some of the
issues and questions that we had the last meeting. I know, you know, some of you Members
already, at the time, wanted to move on this particular, piece of agenda'd item. And because of
the Chair's issues regarding certain parts of the, the purchase of the land, you know, we almost-well, we cleared up most of the issues that was brought forward. And one of the issues is that the
TPL at the time did not have a recorded title, although the judge had already signed off on the
title, it's a matter of recordation at this time. During the review process, it was found that there
are some asbestos and lead paint. Those are being addressed as well as easements. We, we do
have three perpetual easements that are on the piece of land and also the concern of, concerns of
Member Cochran regarding the Apana lands, those had been resolved. So I thought I'd, you
know, bring you up to date in regards to this Chairman and the Administration along with Staff
had discussed with TPL representative, Laura Kaakua. So Members, if you do have any
questions, I'll open it up to Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair So if I understand you correctly, Chair, many
of the concerns that we have been discussing have been cleared?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So as best I can ask Ms. Laura--put it simply, we're ready to go
then? I mean, is there any other way I can say it?
MS. KAAKUA: Well, I, I can, you know, I wanted to, to thank, Chair Pontanilla and the Council and
the Staff. You know, The Trust for Public Land has partnered with the State and all of the
counties in protecting special places throughout the islands. And I'm just, I'm very impressed by
the level of due diligence that the Council as well as the Staff has taken on, and you know, as
you'll see in the report from Mr. Agsalog to, to the Committee, it's a very thorough level of
research that the Staff have done to really address all of the due diligence concerns that came up
at the last meeting. I guess from, from The Trust for Public Lands' perspective, I do have two
updates, one of which Chair Pontanilla already covered being that, that the judgment has been
recorded in favor of The Trust for Public Land. Other than that, at the, at the last Budget and
Finance Committee meeting, we were struggling with a timing issue based on TPL's approval to
hold the property for the County of Maui until the end of March. The day after that meeting, I
did go to my board and ask them for the longest extension possible, and, you know, as I had
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mentioned before, the, the funds that we are using to acquire the land to hold it for the County,
are--it's a limited pool of money that--it's a revolving fund that is used for many other
conservation projects and so for them to postpone the time of holding for this property would
therefore postpone the completion of other conservation projects throughout Hawaii and
nationally. And thankfully because, because they support this project, they did agree to a one
month extension until the end of April and that was based on a timeline when we were operating
under the understanding that this Friday would be the first reading, with the second and final
reading being on April 10 th • And so, that was the timing understanding by which they granted
the one-month extension. We are now poised to take title. We can close in a matter of a day
since we have every legal right to take title at this point, and we simply have to wire the rest of
the funds into escrow. But what we do need is approval of the resolution so that we can move
forward with that and, and have a signed purchase and sale agreement that this County supports.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you and I appreciate that update. Mr. Agsalog, I'm asking
you now, everything has been put in place, all our concerns have been covered. Can you say
from our side, from the County's side, are we ready to go with this so long as we approve the
resolution?
MR. AGSALOG: Yes, Mr. Chair. We are ready to support this purchase and if the Committee ready to
give me that authorization.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and thank you, Chair, for all your hard work. I know,
you know, we have discussed this many times in the, in the last couple of weeks, even when we
went up in D.C., we were... it's a subject matter that came up almost every time we sat down
with anybody, you know? And I've wanted this really, really bad, because this will be one of the
first bold steps that our Mayor has talked about. And I think this is something that I can support.
It's in my backyard; it's something that will perpetuate the only open space between Waiehu and
Waihee,the last open space coastal front. So I really, really believe this is a great opportunity for
us for under a million dollars picking up 63 acres is gonna be a real plus for this is community.
So I wanna thank you, Chair for your due diligence and the Staff because you guys really made it
happen and all of the Administration, and you, Ms. Laura, for all your hard work.
MS. KAAKUA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very, very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Just let me add that, because
everything needed to in on a particular date, the Chair did not ask for discharge for the upcoming
Council meeting. Chair will be working with Council Chairman Mateo to look at a date where
we all can meet so that we can execute this ...not recordation, the approval of the resolution.
And we do have a Council meeting on April the 10 th and what was brought forward to our
meeting, our discussion is that April 10 th gives them only two days, you know, before April 13,
and if anything does happen between the 10th to the 13 th , then it wouldn't give enough time for
completing this, purchase of this land. So the Chair will be working with
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Council ChairmanMateo in regards to hopefully a special Council meeting to take action on the
resolution prior to a Budget meeting. So, we all need to be there for Budget so, you know, I'll be
working with Chairman Mateo. So Members, questions?Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, on two particular items. One is in the property the two
abandoned buildings that's been recognized. In the communication that we did receive back from
Administration, it does cite the potential of both lead paint and asbestos. My, my inquiry is,
who's responsible for removal?
MS. KAAKUA: Okay, you know, regarding the two structures that are on the property, because of their
age, you know, that is standard language in, in anEnvironmental Site Assessment done for
structures built in that time frame that there is the potential for lead-based paint and asbestos.
Here, the two structures have been made a community priority to actually remove those
structures and either have it in open space, you know, that would further the wetland and native
plant restoration efforts or to possibly proposea traditional hale to be built there on the--in the
footprint of the existing structures. But it is a community priority that those structures be
removed and I do--Hokulani Holt is here today. Her organization, Kauahea, Incorporated is one
of the community organizations that are supporting this, this project and they are willing to
spearhead the effort and take responsibility for removing those structures and either leaving it as
open space or, or working with experts to create a traditional hale in the front there.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, so what I'm hearing from you then is there is this entity that is
willing or, and wanting to remove both structures in order to build a hale of some type in that
area?
MS. KAAKUA: Correct. Yes, the...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And this organization is gonna bear the brunt of expenses?
MS. KAAKUA: Yes, they are. They are willing to bear the brunt of expenses and to take it on as a
community project rather than as something that the County will have to deal with upon
ownership.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, that sounds good for me as long as we're not gonna see them
here saying, County, I now need money to remove the building. You know, so I just put that on
the record because you're nodding your head yes.
MS. KAAKUA: Yes, I, I am. I'm stating yes as, as to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you. And then just for clarification, and I believe
this goes to Corporation Counsel. In the resolution, in the resolution on the second page of it, I
guess when it references the value of $2 million. The very next sentence after that 2 million
says, "Said appraisal has been reviewed by an appraiser employed by the County; and", it goes
right into the, "whereas". It give a false implication that the County Administrator for review
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indicated that $2 million was a fair price when in fact, in the communication we got from
Administration this was only--this was taken out of context because you didn't complete the
important part that says, he opined that it was worth less than a million dollars.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So I find this to be a little troublesome to pull and pick and choose
what you want to put into a resolution to make it sound good. So can I get your, your comments
on this?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. THOMSON: Thank you, Chair. You're correct. The, the Code requires that the--an appraiser
employed by the County review the, the appraisal. He concurred that the appraisal would--at
highest and best use would be 2 million, but that as is, given the condition, you know, wetlands,
historic properties, culturally sensitive areas that it would be closer to 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So we're, we're buying the property based on not, not best and highest
use?
MS. THOMSON: Right. We're--we would buying the property based on an as is price.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That's right. So I have problems with this because there is no
$2 million value we're looking at. We're looking at the actual cost of the property, the
800 somewhat, 861.
MS. KAAKUA: Yeah, the, the appraised value is the 2 million just based on the fair market value of the
property.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, fair market value is what the property was bought for.
MS. KAAKUA: No, the -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: What the property was bought for was not $2 million.
MS. KAAKUA: No, the, the fair market value of the property is the highest and best use of the property
which, you know, fortunately or unfortunately in Hawaii is always, -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It wasn't, it wasn't, it cannot be sold -MS. KAAKUA: --is always for development.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --it could not be sold at that, that amount. You people bought it for
considerably less.
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MS. KAAKUA: Right, we bought—right. That is, that is correct, Chair. We did buy it for considerably
less because we were able to get funds together quickly to take advantage of the foreclosure
situation. But the, the fair market value is the $2 million in the appraisal. I'm sorry if I'm not
clarifying, clarifying the, the difference there.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, no. Well, my difficultly in, in kinda looking this through is that
the appraisal we got came from, came from you guys. The County did not do our own due
diligence by doing our own appraisal. So we take--we have to take your word for it. So that's
my difficulty. Mr. Chairman, I will gladly yield to the other Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a follow-up to Chairman Mateo, please. Should this third party do this
cleanup or, or deal with the two structures that has been in discussion earlier, does this mean they
also assume the liability for the County on--regarding those two structures?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Do you want to talk about a potential lease or...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Either or, Corporation Counsel?
MS. THOMSON: What I would anticipate is that a grant agreement would include that the grantee take
liability and have also insurance provisions and things, and we could also include responsibility
for demolition of structures at that time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So in the discussions you folks have been very candid that there is a cost to
acquiring all of these requirements?
MS. KAAKUA: Yes, I mean, they would, you know, they would have to get the requisite permits, they
would have to -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Pay for -MS. KAAKUA: --have insurance.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- insurance premiums.
MS. KAAKUA: Yes, they--right. And which is why it is so important that the nonprofit partner to the
County have the capacity to pay for those things and to have those different protections in place
to the County's satisfaction.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You have a sense of how much this may cost to this project to get it
completed?
MS. KAAKUA: To demolish the two structures, no, I, I haven't asked for bids for, for that yet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have a best guesstimate of what you think may, may be the round,
round, a round number?
MS. KAAKUA: I, I really don't. I'm, I'm not a--at all an expert in, in demolition and yeah, I probably
should.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's a good part of the Committee's concern this afternoon. We are
aware that we're dealing with potentially a large sum of financial resources. And it's difficult
for us to say, third parties will be doing this, this not knowing what kind of financial
commitment these people are making. You know, it could be, again, within or, or outside of
their financial resource capacity. I don't know that. I don't know what it's gonna cost the
County if we had to do it by ourselves. All I know is that, you know, it's gonna take money to
get it done.
MS. KAAKUA: Right. That's right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's gonna take a lot of requirements outside of the County whether it be
Corp. of Engineers from the Feds or a State departments. It's gonna take time, and it's gonna
take money, and you know, I'd rather be told candidly in the end, County, you're gonna end up
paying for all this anyway so this is the number and I rather deal with that and make my
decisions based on as much information as possible. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and Members, we do have Ms. Holt over here in regards to the
organization that will be part of the responsibility of removing the asbestos--removing those
buildings on the property. So if you request that she be here, then I'll bring her forward.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I call on you -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no, Chair -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I'll call on -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry Chair, that was gonna be my request what you just stated.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that same thing for me.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. I have been watching this for quite a
while now and we've been talking about it for a while, and I just wanna say that I can support the
purchase. I think it's important that we get our fingers on this quickly. But I do believe that the
issues about the third party agreement and who will manage and who'll do what needs to be
handled as a separate issue, and it needs to be well-researched and well-prepared and then we sit
down and we can look at that. But for today, you know, as far as buying it I don't have any
problem with that now that the questions have been answered. But I do believe that we need to
come back with something more definite in order to discuss third party. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Holt, if, if you would please? Thank you. Thank you for
being here. So I'll call on Ms. Cochran first.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, basically the, the question you posed to in
regards to our, our resource person, Ms. Holt, thank you for being here. I guess the question to
follow up on Mr. Hokama's inquiry, if you heard him ask the question about the third party
which would be yourselves and how much are you committed to or have you researched a cost
to, you know, for the cleanup of, of the structures?
MS. HOLT PADILLA: At this current time, we did not go into expense to do a total land use plan. We
did an overview 'cause we weren't sure we were gonna be the guys. So, so we did not do an
intensive land use plan. We just did what we have offered you folks in the past. That being said,
our board is committed to do whatever is necessary which includes doing capital campaign
raising as an overall part of the completion of the use of that place. So that one particular portion
would be part of the overall plan and cost estimate that would occur once we know that this is
what we have to do, but we have committed to do whatever is necessary including raise the
money, do the insurance, seek national funding and all of the rest of the ways that a project of
this magnitude would entail.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Holt. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and thank you, Hokulani, for being here. So this is a
community effort as you've stated earlier.
MS. HOLT PADILLA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And so right now you've heard the conditions or the, the
challenges that we are facing, and you know, that should be something we discuss after we buy
the place, but I guess ...(inaudible)...know it ahead of time. But you feel very confident in what
you've done in the past, the ability of doing it for this project and being able to complete the
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cleanup, restorations, and all the, all the necessary safeties that will have to be put in so that this
area can be utilized by the public in a safe and comfortable manner?
MS. HOLT PADILLA: I do. In other projects, I've worked with the, the folks that are on a Federal
level, as well as folks that are on State level that look at cleanup of lands and the, and the
finances needed and the different kinds of monies available for land cleanup, wetland restoration,
et cetera. So, I, I also believe that our community as a whole will be supportive as, as
individually they have told me, be supportive of keeping this place as an educational center and
open land designation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I agree 'cause many people have approached me on the street
saying the same thing that they want it, they're willing to work hard to keep it that way and this
is the opportunity. Unfortunately, you know, the skepticism out there, you can't blame it
because you know, they've had other, other challenges in the past.
MS. HOLT PADILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I think your reputation and the community at large along with
people like Duke Sevilla and all that, I can feel very comfortable, Mr. Chair, that these people
would do an excellent job on behalf of the people of Maui County and, and, and our, our trust in
them can be well, can be well-endorsed by myself and others. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Ms. Holt? Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, and I don't know if it goes to our Corp. Counsel first. The
question would be after the purchase of the property when we start to deal with the
Parks Department and their lease agreements or whatever it is, the organization is gonna be
coming back at that time to provide us with a scenario of their use, their plans, et cetera? Is that
how thatprocess work for the agreements and leases?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. THOMSON: And so with--I anticipate that a, they would have a grant proposal that would include
the terms of their management, and then our standard grant agreements for the use of County
property include insurance requirements and potentially in this case would include a requirement
to demolish the homes of those existing structures or other work that was specifically tailored to
the conditions of the property.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. So actually what I'm asking is, they'll come back to provide to
us in writing their master plan and their direction with the property, that's part of the requirement
of the lease agreement?
MS. THOMSON: That would be part of the requirement of the grant proposal.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Grant proposal?
MS. THOMSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you very much, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Members, any more questions for Ms. Holt or, or
Ms. Kaakua or Administration? Before the Chair makes his recommendation, I'd just like to call
maybe two-minute recess. So we'll be in recess for two minutes. Stay in your chairs.
. (gavel). . .

RECESS:

2:39 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:41 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). .Members, We are in receipt of a new resolution from
Corporation Counsel. So at this time, we're gonna be passing out the new resolution and the
Chair is gonna call a five-minute recess to have the Members take a look at the new resolution
that is being proposed. This would provide all the timelines in regards to this one particular item
this afternoon. The Budget and Finance, Finance Committee meeting is now in recess for five
minutes. . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

2:42 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:50 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Thank you, Members, for allowing the Chair to call that five-minute recess. At this time, the
Chair would like to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on first reading of a
revised proposed bill entitled, A Bill For An Ordinance Amending Appendix A of the Fiscal
Year 2012 Budget for the County Of Maui as it Pertains to Part II, Special Purposes--Special
Purpose Revenues - Schedule of Revolving/Special Funds for Fiscal Year 2012, Open Space,
Natural Resources, Cultural Resources And Scenic Views Preservation Fund, Paukukalo Coastal
Wetlands/Ka'ehu Bay. I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So move, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch.
Members, any more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama, first.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'll be happy to give up the floor to Mr. Victorino since he made
the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you, and thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Chair, I, I
believe a lot has been said already. So there's not much more to be said. I just--I am very happy
that we've reached this point where we're moving it forward. There's still some concerns.
There's still some challenges, but again, I've said this many times and I say it again, never a
perfect ordinance, perfect resolution or perfect law. We gotta work through it. I, I hope, I hope
Hokulani, the people are listening. Laura, they're listening that we have committed to do this.
We're putting our money where our mouth is. Now I hope the community puts their effort
where their mouth is because if it doesn't happen, we're all going look bad and I value my--I
value my reputation just like you all do. And I wanna thank the Mayor and I wanna thank the
Administration, but I especially wanna thank you, Mr. Chair, because I know you went with
Staff up and beyond the call to get this all together, because I know there were so many more
concerns, and we kept tripping over different things as we moved along the path. But I think
we've cleared it up. I think this, it's a good start and there's others today and others in the
future, and West Maui and other areas are gonna be looking at this as a first step in keeping and
preserving open wetlands, open coastal facilities, and coastal lands for in perpetuity, that's it and
we cannot use it for anything but that. And I think with that in mind, Mr. Chair, I am so excited
today to have this, especially it comes from my community, but I don't care if it was from West
Maui, South Maui, East Maui, I don't care what part of Maui, we don't have these chances very
often so when we do, let's grab it, let's use it and let's make it to the benefit of the people of
Maui County. I thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I'm with Mr. Victorino. My, my question is
whether--it's not whether we should buy it or not, my question is at what price? So my question
to, if you would allow, Mr. Chairman, to Corporation Counsel is since we are specifically using a
Charter approved fund, Open Space, Natural Resources, Cultural Resources Scenic Views
Preservation Fund, can those monies be used to also pay for the salary and marketing that is
being included in this sale price? Because my understanding of what's in the Charter will not
cover those items.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Corporation Counsel.
MS. THOMSON: The, the County Code and the Charter are silent on the, the specific line items that
can be included in a purchase price. So it really addresses just the use of the Open Space Fund
for purchasing not at a certain price or at a certain, with certain included qualities or not, but
purchasing lands that have those purposes. It's, it's silent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well we, the, you know, the people were smart enough to add the phrase,
"shall not be used for any purpose except those listed in Paragraph 1". And in Paragraph 1, it's
very detailed,Counselor, and that is why I'm asking you that question, because for the life of me,
I cannot ask the taxpayers to pay for someone's salary and marketing when that is their whole
job and whole purpose of their organization. That should be outside of the sales price to me.
MS. THOMSON: I understand your concern. The way, the way that I'm reading it is that there may be
situations where we would pay, we would pay more than what would be fair market value for a
specifically, you know, a very important piece of property. Or there may be cases where we can
negotiate a better price with a nonprofit like we have with The Trust for Public Land in this
circumstance. But I don't see that there's a limitation on what is included, but it is up to the
Committee and the Council to determine whether they feel that's a fair price.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair, you may wanna consider having her put that in writing before first
reading at Council because it's on the record. I need to have that understood by future Councils
of what she just said today regarding the use of that fund. And so, I would request a written
opinion from Corporation Counsel on the specific response to that question, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll do that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I believe what we have before us is the proper
thing to do and I support the resolution before us, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time, the Chair would like to entertain a motion to amend
the revised proposed resolutions -MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --by one.attaching the revised...
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry.
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MR. KANESHINA: I believe we're at -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, we still at the motion.
MR. KANESHINA: -- the main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Okay, any more discussion on the main motion at
this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. All in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Nine ayes, zero noes. At this time, the Chair would like to
entertain -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You didn't ask for noes.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: But already recorded a, recorded votes, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, never mind.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, you want me recall the voting again? I, I can do that. At this time, can
we rescind the action that we just taken?
MR. KANESHINA: I would probably have to consult with one of the attorneys -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
MR. KANESHINA: --dependingwhat the proper procedure is to recall the votes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If you would allow me, please? This is a parliamentary procedure issue, it
is not with the attorneys. It is between the, the Members and you, our Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the Chair will now -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recall the vote.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --recall the vote on this one here. All in favor of the motion, please say,
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Eight ayes, one no, Mr. Hokama. Motion is carried.
Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Vice-Chair Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to entertain a motion to recommend
adoption of the revised proposed resolution that has been distributed by Staff today, entitled,
Authorizing the Purchase of Oceanfront Land Situated at Ka'ehu Bay, District of Wailuku,
Island of County of Maui, Pursuant to Chapters 3.44 and 3.88, Maui County Code;and to file
County Communication 12-25.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So move, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Mr. White. Members, any
more discussion? Seeing none, the Chair would like to entertain a motion to amend the revised
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proposed resolution by: 1. Attaching the revised Exhibit, the Agreement of Sale transmitted by
correspondence dated March 12, 2012 from the Budget Director; 2. Attaching Exhibit, appraisal
from the original proposed resolution; and 3. In the fifth, WHEREAS clausestriking the second
sentence in its entirety.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So move, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member White. Members, any
more discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Motion is carried, nine ayes, zero noes.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Coming back to the main motion, as amended. Any more discussion,
Members? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried, eight ayes, one no, Mr. Hokama.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Mateo, Victorino, and White.
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NOES: Vice-Chair Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of revised resolution and FILING of
communication.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, congratulations. Now the ball is almost in your court in
regards to ensuring that the land is kept into conservation and the preservation of that 63.7 acres.
Thank you very much. Thank you, Laura, for being here. Thank you. That was supposed to be
the easy one of all that we have today. Okay, next on the agenda is the BF-60--I tell you what,
Members, let's take a ten-minute recess. We'll reconvene at 3:10. This meeting is in recess till
3 :10. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

3:01 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:14 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Members, the second item this afternoon is BF-60, Amending Fiscal Year 2012 Budget:
Waikapu Fire Warehouse Facility. The purpose of the bills is to amend FY 2012 Budget and
bond authorization by adding an appropriation for $5,435,000 for the Waikapu Fire Warehouse
facility and a proposed resolution to approve the acquisition of real property located at 313
Manea Place, Wailuku consisting of 40,155 square foot, square foot of land with approximately
4,900 square foot of office space and 15,498 square foot of warehouse space. Members, also on
this agenda'd item we do have, if needed, and it's been properly noticed for an executive session.
ITEM BF-60:

AMENDING FY 2012 BUDGET: WAIKAPU FIRE WAREHOUSE
FACILITY (CC 12-1)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So at this time the Chair would like to call on Mr. Baz, please.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and good afternoon again, Members. We present to you a ordinance
and resolution to purchase the property at as described 313 Manea Place in Waikapu. This land
off of Waiko Road and building is something that's currently occupied by the Fire Department
and has been for the last couple of years. It is a basically a warehouse and office space with
parking and training facility--well, not really training facility, but that's, that's where they store a
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lot of their items and, and needs. Mr. Chair, we are proposing this from a financial perspective
looking at the lease that we are currently in with the landowner that was executed back in 2008,
and the amount of money that we pay for rent at this property is currently, you know, about
$350,000--$355,000 a year in, in rent for this facility. And we have a lease agreement that goes
out until 2020 with an option to extend that lease for another ten years. And each year of this
lease it escalates I think approximately 4 percent. What we would like to do is work on fixing
the cost via a purchase of this. In the original lease agreement there is an--two options to
purchase. The first one was during year two which was last year, which it has expired and that
was for 573,000, excuse me, $5,573,620 and the second option in your three was for 5,796,000
and excuse me, and $564.83. We are, have worked with the landowner. We've done an
appraisal on the property and had an appraisal done with the landowner. The appraised price and
our offered purchase price, which he has tentatively accepted pending Council approval, is
$5,435,000. The annual debt service on that would be approximately $365,000. So in the initial
part, the cash flow would be about the same what we're paying in debt versus what we're paying
in rent. However, except for paying our landlord's mortgage, we'd be paying our own mortgage,
and I was told by a very wise woman once, when you pay rent, all you do is you have a box of
receipts at the end, and when you pay a mortgage you are, you are buying land that you're
investing in. And this property is something that we have invested in, that the County does
utilize on a regular basis. The Fire Department needs this facility and it's something that we, as
from a financial perspective are saying that it makes a lot--it's a lot more sense to purchase this.
There is about a 13-year payoff on it,the amount of time we would take to pay for the debt
service versus paying for the rent. However, this is something that we see as a benefit for this
community and the County financially, so that's why we're proposing this for your consideration
this afternoon. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Also with us this afternoon, we do have Fire Chief Murray.
Mr. Agsalog, you have any comments to make at this time?
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair, thank you. We, we in the Administration, I work with the Budget Office
when the option to purchase this property came about when we came in as a new Administration,
we had worked on the numbers and we--I agree with what the Budget Director have just said that
we would benefit in purchasing this particular facility, because not only because of the use, but
also for financial gain for us, Mr. Chair. So with that, I'm here as a resource person if you have
any question with regards to this purchase, Mr. Chair, being the chief negotiator for the County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chief Murray, comments?
MR. BAZ: As Chief Murray comes up, I just also do want to point out the Cost of Government
Commission Report which was just transmitted to you very specifically talks about us, we
should, that we should be purchasing or building versus continuing to lease as we do now. So
just a, just a comment. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chief Murray.
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MR. MURRAY: Good afternoon, Budget Chair and Council Members. Thank you for this opportunity
for us to come before you and answer any questions that you may have about this property.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mayor, you wanna make some comments also?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yes, very briefly. When this—when we came into office and we were looking
at how we can economize and how we can best run the government more efficiently, one of the
things that we looked at was cost of purchase versus long-term leases. The most glaring example
always comes back to us when we look at One Main Plaza. We're paying $1.3 million a year.
We could have purchased for 10.5, and we would almost had paid for the whole building by this
time. So I've charged our Administration to start looking at these areas where we're paying
exorbitant leases and how we can pay them off and even if it's 13 years, 13 years from now we'll
own the property,as a matter of fact, free and clear versus having a lease that we're gonna be
paying long term. In the meantime, you know, if it gets to a point where we can find somebody
who wants to buy it and pay us much more, we could always get out of it because we own the
property. So owning gives us a lot of options, leasing gives us very little option. So the Cost of
Government Commission has also been looking into this, and they've recommended that we start
looking at all of these properties that we are leasing and try and figure out how we can get out of
long-term leases and, and get into ownership. And my concur, our Administration concurs that
we need to be able to look at ownership rather than leasing wherever it's economically viable.
So that is our direction and this is why we're recommending purchase of this. Now, we wanna
point out that, you know, in, in a lot of these circumstances where we're already committed to
the conditions that we can actually look at what are we gonna be paying in year two, year three,
on out. We can actually do the mathematical calculation so we can see that 13 years from now,
we'll have this paid off versus what we're paying in leases and the increases every year. So this
is the direction we're gonna be constantly coming to you to try and, and look at and do
evaluations on purchase or construction rather than leasing longterm and then, you know, when
you, when you lease, you're paying somebody else's profits. They gonna wanna profit off of
this. When you own, we get to retain the profits within the County. We don't paying that extra,
plus we have the, we have the property. So that's our efforts in trying to do this, pure and
simple.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions? Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, and thank you, Mayor. You know, I agree with
you, owning is better than renting, no question about that. I think, that's a Portuguese thing on
top of that, but we rather own than we rent anybody's things. But I not sucka either. When I
read over here that the present appraised value of this property is $3,210,000, a lotof this five
million, four-hundred and something thousand dollars is because we rent the property from them.
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Am I correct in saying that? And I'm looking right here at the, our assessed value. So Mr. Baz,
challenge me on that because that is from our tax records.
MR. BAZ: The tax assessed value and the appraised value are different items and they're consistently
different items. The appraised value is based on there, there's two different types of appraisals
that we looked at. One was the best--highest and best use -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Understood.
MR. BAZ: --category and then the other one was basically a different version of a cost to replace, and I
forget the exact term of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Replacement value.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, it's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I understand that one too. Go ahead, continue.
MR. BAZ: Right. The, the appraised value is at that $5.4 million, and that is the appraised value and
that has been certified by our, our Real Property Tax Administrator.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The replacement value or the appraised value for best, best use?
MR. BAZ: The replacement value. If, if the County was gonna go and buy land and build a building,
we'd be spending way more than this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Really?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I find that hard to believe. We can go buy a 100 acres for
$2 million. But okay, let's not go there. Okay, let's not go there, right. I'm just saying that I
reading one thing here, that's black and white. That's from our Real Property and I understand
the difference. There is a thing called replacement of value when you're talking about a building
burning down and replacing it. That's my world, insurance. I understand that, and that's based
upon the type of building, area, there's a whole bunch of factors that go in and market, the
present market. Right now we're in a down market so I would beg to differ with you. I think we
can get a lot of things done a lot cheaper today and we've seen that with bids. Isn't that correct,
Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, we have.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, you know, I'm sorry if I sounded a little angry because I
just don't like this, this big differences. Whereas on the other side, we're buying properties that
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are assessed at a higher value for less, then I'm excited. So, I--you know, I, I swing, I
understand that but what I'm saying is I'm just, just thinking that this may be too much. My next
question and not for you or the Mayor, it would really be for the Department, if we was to say,
we opt out of this lease, we go build something, we go get that 100 acres, we go get the 200 acres
and we build something else and we say, good-bye, thank you. We break the lease. What
happens then?
MR. BAZ: That, Mr. Chair, is one of the biggest reasons why we're presenting this to you is we can't
break out of the lease. There is--the only option to break out of the lease is the Council not
appropriating funds for the--this and we need this space. The, the Fire Department and they can
confirm that they need this space, so we need the space. So, yeah, that would be the only way
that according to this lease agreement that was signed back in 2008, for us to get out of it is by
Council not appropriating funds in that program, but that'd be pretty difficult and, and would I'm
sure bring about a lawsuit from the, the landlord.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, and I, I agree. I just again, 5.4 million in, in my estimation,
the value of that building and the value of that sale is because we're there and we are using it and
they know we need it. You know, and that's also putting the whole factor, the demand, and the
demand is us. So we've created our own little monster in this one, didn't we?
MR. BAZ: I understand that, yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right. Thank you very much. I'll let other Council members
ask questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Gentlemen, for me my two questions--yeah, well let
me ask my first question. Why two weeks before we plan to receive the Mayor's proposed
upcoming Fiscal Year's Budget request where we can see the, the Administration's direction and
how they plan to prioritize certain things, do we wanna take up almost $9 million worth of
budget amendments now instead of waiting to get a very clear, full financial picture from
yourself and others in Administration so that we can make a better decisions for the upcoming
budget?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Bar.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The, the reason why that you're reviewing this at this point is the
landlord has stated that this is the only time that they will sell it to us at this lower price, and
other than that, he will not—we'd have to exercise the option as per the lease agreement which is
at a higher price.or we'd have to just stay until the end of the lease which would cost us another
$3 million in rent. And so he has extended this, I, I, I don't know the exact date. Maybe the
Finance Director has the exact date of when he's extended this offer to. But that's why at the
current review at this time on this, on this exact parcel.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that was like a threat to the County? Because I don't deal well with
threats to the County.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I'll let the Director of Finance, he's been negotiating with the landlord.
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair, I don't think it was a threat to the County. It's just the way that the
agreement was written and there, there are two opportunities or options that we could do, do so
in purchasing it, again it's not a...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Mr. Agsalog, I'm sorry to interrupt.
MR. AGSALOG: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I apologize. But this consideration is not part of the normal language in the
current lease. Is that correct from the Committee's understanding?
MR. AGSALOG: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This gesture is from the so-called goodwill of the current lessor to offer the
County this price. So--but it is not part of the current terms of the lease agreement. Is that a
good understanding of this Committee?
MR. AGSALOG: It is correct, Mr. Chair. The purchase price on the third option would be higher,5.7; I
think it is on the option. We actively negotiated with them to try to get out of this lease by
owning the property. Because once this third option expires, we will not be able to acquire it at
that price, and as we have mentioned earlier, this is purely a financial decision that we are
offering to purchase this one. Because of the long lease that confronted us when we came into
the Administration, we are trying to get out of it. So I hope that answer your question, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Excuse me. Mr. Director, thank you for that response and thank you for
doing your job by bringing this consideration forward. I think that that was part of the
responsibilities of the Department, and I understand and appreciate having this brought forward
to us. But then it's again from your response, it's interesting to me that because it's now to the
benefit of the seller, we get this grander option which is not part of the agreement, but because he
feels to provide us with this opportunity--thank you, Mayor--another opportunity for him to
make money in this dovvnturned economy. So, you know, for me, gentlemen, with all due
respect, I'm taking a gamble, Chairman, which I'm not comfortable at this today, against what
all the other needs will be coming up in Fiscal Year '13 requests. And again, you know, the
Mayor is gonna tell us his approach to revenues whether he's gonna be aggressive or
conservative. Again, we will wait and see in two weeks to find out Mayor Arakawa's Fiscal
Plan as well as what is the priorities the that districts have imposed upon him to ask for the
upcoming year. I would like to be able to balance that off against this $9 million worth of
borrowing. And I appreciate the Budget Director giving us a sense that for this is another
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$345,000 plus or minus, but that is only a small portion of the total debt service we pay in the
millions over 20 plus years schedules, Chairman. I would like to be able to understand where
this puts us when the County finally goes before a bond request with our underwriters, with our
three rating agencies, and of course, our bond counsel. It's hard to make bonafide decisions
while it may be a worthy project, Chairman. There are times where I think the due diligence of
the Council is to its benefit by taking the time to understand the whole financial picture. And I
appreciate the Department's bringing it forward, but I also find interesting in the timing of the
lessor to the County. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So Mr. Bar or Mr. Agsalog, either one, you're
saying that, you know, over the term of the lease which is how long?
MR. AGSALOG: Ten years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That we're gonna be paying...
MR. BAZ: The initial--excuse me, the initial lease period is ten years. It ends January 10, 2020.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And at that end of that period, we'll have paid over $3 million?
MR. BAZ: $3.85 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And have nothing for it other than have to move out?
MR. BAZ: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BAZ: The option periods 1 and 2 are for another ten years with escalating. If we stayed the whole
20 years, we'd end up paying $9.5 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so I guess bond rating or no, I, I don't understand, Mr. Chair,
what, you know, if we're gonna spend that much money, for only a couple more million we'll
have something at the end and we can then sell it. I think that's fiscal prudence myself. But
along the other lines, is this facility if we--there are other items before us that say we wanna
purchase 100 acres for however much money and they're gonna supposedly be a baseyard there.
If that ever happens, is this facility gonna be moving to there and then we're--we now have a
piece of land that we can either use as other storage or sell and, and get, and get a return on our
investment?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Couch, the purchase of the 100 acres which is the next item on
the agenda includes a small amount for master planning of that, and that would be one of the--
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definitely one of the items that would be evaluated in the master planning of that 100 acres. So it
would be a consideration. You know, a lot of factors go into master planning. For the
Fire Department themselves they'd have to evaluate is it better for them to be all consolidated for
their administrative offices as well as their current uses and storage at the, this Manea Place
location, would it be beneficial for them to be co-located, is it beneficial for them not to be
collocated? Those are lot of different factors that would go into that, that discussion and that
master planning.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Mr. Chair, you know, you can certainly ask my wife, I'm not
the best financial wizard, but I do, I can add and subtract and, and do what is necessary to
balance my, our budget, and you know, it's something whether we're paying interest payments
or lease payments, the same amount it, it sounds like pretty much the same amount, that after that
ten-year term we may actually own the land and be able to sell it back for maybe less, maybe
more, but at least we'll have something for our, our taxpayer's money. I, I don't see a downside
in this but maybe my colleagues can point something out along the line. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Before I call on any other Member, I'd just like to
have maybe Chief Murray kinda explain the construction of the building itself. It was built to the
Department's, I guess, specifications. There are some things that were added into the building
that would support the heavy equipment that we do have at that location. So Mr. Murray.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair. Realize at the time when we looked at properties or warehousing
space at that time in 2008 and '09 that there were none available. We were already renting a
property in Alua within Wailuku Industrial which was just slightly less, less than this cost, and
we were looking for...the square footage quadrupled in this property so it was worth the several
thousand dollars that we paid extra. During, during the process and, and realize that inheritance
is not always a good thing. So in the process of, of moving forward with this project, we, we
found a parcel and, and a builder that was willing to do add-ons based on what our requirements
were. And how the building is built, it's not a hardened area, but it does house many of our items
as well as our Fire Prevention Bureau. It has office space. So, we--it's like multi-purpose there.
And we house about, roughly about 3.8 million in items, in that warehouse.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Members, please note that the request, not request, but on
this particular item that the Chair had indicated that we could go into executive session, because-and the reason why I had included that is, is because of what we do at that location. So, you
know, Members, in open session you can ask all, you know, questions regarding the sale, the
prices, and, and so forth. But operationally at that location, I'd like to go into executive session.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I'd like, I'd like that very much and maybe that will
clear up some of the concerns that I have in that respect.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is the Committee in receipt of the lease, a copy of the lease also,
Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Scott?
MR. KANESHINA: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe we can get a copy of the lease agreement? Okay, we can make
copies. Oh, you already got copies? Okay, we'll make copies of the lease agreement.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa. Oh, Member Cochran followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Are you sure?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No problem. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and thank you...I was just curious, you know, I
was hearing the testifiers and it almost feels like it hasn't been fully vetted in the community
there in Waikapu. So I'm curious the other nights, last evenings meeting, was that the first
outreach to Waikapu community about this proposal? I don't know who can answer that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran, I-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can I answer her, 'cause I was at the meeting, but that's -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Last night meeting I understand was -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Was Monday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --were vacant lands.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This facility has been in existence for maybe four years?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So this is an existing area that we've been there for about four years right
now.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, and within that timeframe, I know noise was a fact--they
were saying there's gonna be more noise, sirens, what have you. Is that accurate to say that
would occur more so...
MR. MURRAY: Not at, not at this parcel. We use it for storage facility as well as a staging area during
our large incidents.
CO1UNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, 'cause that was my question what's the use of a fire station
or police station versus warehouse, warehouse storage/office space. So that was kinda one of my
yet wanted more clarification on the different types of use and definitions on that. Another
question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And also the concern in regards to the update of the Maui Island
and General Plan at this time and this project sort of piecemealing, there's the A&B regional
park proposal along with this, so just curious if that, there's a comment about that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran, that's the next item that we're gonna bring up.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, oh, okay.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr., Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
MR. BAZ: This item, this current location, this building that we're talking about now is currently
located in an industrial area. It was a BASEYARDS13 project a number of years ago off of
Waiko Road on the Wailuku side of Waiko Road. So it is a different—directly adjacent, across
the street from it, but is a different location that is currently industrial area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, sorry. I'm confusing the two. That's why I wanted maps,
`kay, anyways.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Member Baisa followed by Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. One quick question. It's not readily--I can't find it readily.
How much property are we buying along with this building or is it just the building?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's 40,000 square feet.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How much?
MR. MURRAY: It is...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, property, land.
MR. MURRAY: Land is 40,155 square feet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So almost an acre?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, that doesn't sound too bad. Well, you know, I happen to be
influenced by the same wise old lady that Sandy referred to, and that happens to be my mother
who always said that, you know, if there's an opportunity to buy property you should buy it
rather than rent because at the end of your life you have a box of receipts, and this is the case.
You know, had we bought One Main Plaza we would have paid for it almost already instead of
paying rent. So, to me, if we're gonna continue to rent this and we're stuck with a, with a
contract we can't get out of, then I think we should buy it as long as we can afford it, and that for
me was the pivotal question. And it seems that our financial wizards are assuring us that we
have the wherewithal to do this and if we do, then I say let's buy it.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Staff is passing out right now the breakdown that we created. It
shows if we stayed in the lease up until January 10, 2020, which is the initial lease period that
that we're, we're signed off with, we would have paid $3,037,589 in rent. If we go up to that
period of purchasing it now, the debt service we would pay is $2,749,697 and that's a savings
difference of $287,891. So just, just buying it is gonna save us cash flow wise $287,000, let
alone, the investment in our own assets.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Looks like a pretty solid investment to me, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. This, you know, I totally support the direction that
the Mayor is moving into purchase rather than lease whenever we can. I think the reason that
some of us are a little uncomfortable is the price tag is pretty high, especially if you, if you look
at--and again, hindsight's real, you know, real easy, but this just makes the point that the Mayor
and you guys are moving in the right direction. If we were to have done this ourselves, we could
have bought the property for 1.2 million and the building permit amount which doesn't always
include all the, you know, all the costs but building permit was 1.2 so that's a combined cost of
2.4, probably have to add onto that infrastructure and then the upgrades to the building but we're
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probably not talking a million dollars on top of that. So let's say it's 3.4, so for this we're paying
a premium at purchase of 2 million and the total we're gonna be putting out is 7.2 over the time
of the, of the, the financing. So I support where we're going, I think we need to do it just
because the numbers point us in that direction, but I just wanted to make the point, Mr. Chair,
that we need to be looking at these things as our own developments as opposed to having others
spend the money and then charge us a premium for doing so. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Sandy, for this. At least it
gives us a better idea, you know, and again, we need, we need numbers in front of us. The lease
agreement I'd like to see that also. I mean, I think that's important to make informed decision.
If you throw something in front of me like this the way it was and I'm reading this, I'm not a
happy camper. And you know, and I think the Mayor would feel the same way. He wants all the
information. I think we deserve that, too. That's the only request I'd make in the future. Don't
give me piecemeal, can you put 'em all together so that at least I, I can make a rational decision.
But still, I still go back to this point that, you know, right now we're the cause of our
...(inaudible).., we're the cause of the, the challenge. We're our worst enemy because we rented
it, they know we need it, you got things in there and we need to know what's in there and I think
that's going be important, and they know they got us where they want us and so now they're not
gonna be nice. And I agree, Mr. Hokama, that's not the kindness of their heart they came up and
said, oh, we'll sell it to you today 'cause I think you guys are nice people. Come on now, and I
know about the tooth fairy, too, you know, I still waiting for my $2. Bottom line is I can support
it. You know, that's all I could ever get was $2. Yeah, you guys cheap. Anyhow, Mr. Chair, I
just want the Department and to explain to us--and I guess that's why we need to go in executive
session--the importance of it. I think that's something we need to understand, too. Okay,
because now I'm told some other things about what uses are being done in there and that's
important to realize, also. I'm one like to buy. I never like to rent. I still till today don't like to
rent, I only wanna buy. However, I also understand if by buying I end up paying way more than
I could have rented it and when I get--and if it's not worth it or value falls to the kaputs, I walk
away from it, it sometimes maybe a better option in that respect. So let's go in executive
session, Chair. I think that then I can have some other questions answered.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions in open session? Member Hokama
followed by Member Cochran.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would ask for your consideration, a request, I would like to
have the names of the officers of BASEYARDS 13 LLC, addressed at Bishop Street, Honolulu,
Hawaii.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, just curious if there's anything that we need to be brought
aware of or worried about or any concerns to the agreement to purchase "as is" clause and "with
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all faults", quotes. So are there anything that we need to know of any particular concerns with
this wording here, "as is" or "with faults". No?
MR. MURRAY: No, there is none.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions in open session? If not, the Chair would entertain a
motion to enter into executive session pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(6), Hawaii Revised Statutes,
to consider sensitive matters related to public safety or security.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member Victorino. Any
discussion, Members? All in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE; RECESS open meeting and CONVENE executive meeting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we will recess this meeting and prepare for executive session.
. (gavel). . .
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RECESS:

3:49 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:22 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . .The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Members, thank you for that executive session. At this time, Members, do you have any more
questions regarding the purchase of the fire warehouse in Waikapu for the Department?
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And just a quick question. The, the actual lease
was negotiated by whom?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: From my understanding, it was negotiated by the former Fire Chief.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And approved by Corp. Counsel, so ...
MR. BAZ: To form and legality, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I, I think it's a real good lesson to remember.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And it was--like I mentioned, it was an item that was brought up
under the Cost of Government, the latest Cost of Government Commission Report and this
Administration definitely takes it to heart. We have Guy Hironaka, who works very hard on as
our Real Estate Manager working on leases and trying to coordinate everything so that there's,
there's consistency and that the leases are in the best interest of the County other functions.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair has one fast question. The sewer and the water for that one
particular subdivision, is it County or private?
MR. BAZ: From my understanding, the water system is a private water system.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. How about the sewer?
MR. BAZ: I'm not sure about that, Mr. Chair.
MR. MURRAY: County.
MR. BAZ: Oh, it's--excuse me, Mr. Chair? The sewer system is on property. We manage it
ourselves,the leach field.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, okay fine, thank you. Any more questions, Members, before the Chair
make his recommendation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair's recommendation is to pass on first reading, A Bill for
an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget for the County Of Maui as it Pertains to
Estimated Revenues; Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan Area, Government Facilities, Waikapu
Fire House [sic]; Total Capital Improvement Project Appropriations and Total Appropriation
(Operating and Capital Improvement Projects); and A Bill For An Ordinance Amending
Ordinance No. 3837, Bill No. 31 (2011), Relating to the Issuance of General Obligation Bonds
of the County of Maui (Waikapu Fire Warehouse); and three, to Adopt the resolution entitled,
Approving the Acquisition of Real Property at the Wailuku, Maui, Hawaii, for County of Maui,
Department of Fire And Public Safety Warehouse and Office Center; and for filing of County
Communication No. 12-1.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So move, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch. Members, any
more discussion on this matter?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. You know, now that we've had an opportunity,
Mr. Baz, to look over the lease, the comparison sheet which I thank you for. I mean, I think that
helps us and maybe in the future when we get all the information that helps us to understand and
other--and other information still being passed to us, I can feel much more comfortable now.
Even though I really believe we're paying an inflated price for this building, I can support it
because of all the necessities that have been demonstrated to us. And the small savings in lease
rent versus the debt service, 'cause according to this we'd be 287,000 to the good. I mean, now
that's still money to be, to be in the good, you know what I mean? And as it was mentioned by
other colleagues, then, you know, down the road if we build something else we can always sell.
But I gotta admit folks, not quite an acre of land we're paying almost $51/2 million when we're
gonna get other properties we're buying for much, much more reasonable--grant you, there's a
building and there's all the other elements so--but I can support it, Mr. Baz. Thank you for all
the additional information. Sorry I was a little hard on you earlier but it just--it just gets me all
excited when I look at one price and I'm like almost double someplace else and I'm like, wow,
don't take advantage of the County. You know, and that's one of the things I do not appreciate
when someone takes advantage of us. And you know, when I say, "us", it's the people of Maui
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County, 'cause that's the people we all live with and have to deal with it every day and they're
struggling out there, so I want to get it as, pardon the expression, as cheap as possible, yeah. So
thank you, Mr. Baz, and thank you, Chief, for the explanations and all of you now, so I can feel
much more comfortable. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama followed by Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I guess that smart, wise old Portuguese woman made an
appearance. But I think that's just, you know, basically what we've all been taught as, as good,
sound financial foundations in all, in how we practice in our own homes, Mr. Chairman. And it
didn't take a lot for my father to figure out by taking a mortgage and paying less than his
monthly lease he had a deal, you know, and that's what was offered to many of our people on
Lanai, a lower mortgage than your monthly rent. So it was a no-brainer. Again, though
Chairman, you know, timing is just always interest--has always interest me and while I, I know
the purchase is a sound financial decision on our part, I just find it interesting on the timing. But
I think the taxpayers who's gonna pay for this purchase should know that BASEYARDS 13 is a
LLC. They have four managers, Scott Larue, Kenneth Bise, Louis Dionese, and John Kerr, and
it's interesting that their primary purpose they state with the State Regulatory Agency for their
purpose is real estate investment. That is their primary purpose. So I can appreciate
Mr. Victorino's concern about the purchase price that we're being considered. However in the
long run Chairman, as the Charter allows, the County through its Council may always, has
always the option to dispose of assets if the Council finds it to the advantage of the County and
its taxpayers. So, I'm gonna support your motion this afternoon, and I appreciate the
Departments doing their due diligence and bringing forth the offer that was made by the property
owner. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I, too, support your, your
recommendation. I would like to just impress upon the departments, you know, the departments
that are integral in, in negotiating leases like this. Let's be very careful with our leases. This is-you know, we had the Wailuku Post Office, same thing, it's a lease we, we had to, we had to buy
to get out of a bad lease. You know, if time is of the essence to, to get a--secure a facility or
whatnot, let's work on getting halfway decent leases. We're getting two, you know, hopefully
this isn't a trend. So, I implore, I know it's not anybody here right now but the current
departments and future departments just really be careful with your leases, because this lease, I
mean, just reading through it, not a good one. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion on this matter?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have one quick question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure, Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORNO: Oh, never mind, never mind, never mind, I changed my mind. I
got the answer already. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anyway, I'd just like to let the Members know that Staff and I had been
working along with the Fire Department, Sandy Baz, as well as the Finance Director in regards
to this purchase. And let me tell you, you know, during our visit we were kinda impressed in
regards to what's out there, and again, I just warma say, you know, yeah, we're living with the
lease that was signed by a previous Fire Chief when real estate was at its premium. So, with that,
you know, I appreciate the Members moving forward on, on this land purchase, and it was also
suggested by the Cost of Government that we take a look at how we make proposals for leases
with different companies. I understand that now that the Administration has done.. .we do have
one focal that concentrate on lease agreements. So lesson learned? Yeah. All in favor of the
motion, please say,"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Seeing none, motion is carried. Nine ayes, zero noes. Thank
you, Chief Murray, thank you Chief Yabuta and Deputy Chief Shimada as well as, I don't know
if to call you Chief or, or, or, you know, Mainaga. Thank you very much for being here. Thank
you, Mr. Agsalog.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of Budget Bill, FIRST READING of
Bond Bill, ADOPTION of resolution, FILING of communication.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, the next item is BF-67, Amending Fiscal Year 2012 Budget:
Acquisition of Real Property at Waikapu (100 Acres near the Intersection of Waiale and
Waiko Roads). The purpose of the proposed bill, bills is to amend the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget
and Bond Authorization to include an appropriation of $2,710,000 for the acquisition of real
property at Waikapu and a proposed resolution to authorize the acquisition of approximately 100
acres of property at Waikapu for $25,000 an acre. This is mistake. The request is broken down
to $2.56 million for the land purchase and $150,000 for master plan and land entitlements.
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ITEM BF-67:

AMENDING FY 2012 BUDGET: ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY
AT WAIKAPU (100 ACRES AT INTERSECTION OF WAIALE AND
WAIKO ROADS; WAIALE 905 PARTNERS, LLC)(CC 12 41)
-

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So at this time, I know Staff is passing out some information. At this time, the
Chair would like to call on Mr. Baz for comments.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you for bringing this item up in front of this Committee.
The proposal in front of you is an ordinance for appropriation of bond funds for the acquisition
of property. This as, as discussed, anticipated acquisition amount of $2,560,000 and $150,000
for planning costs to include a master plan and any land entitlements that we may need going
forward with this property. We do have our Mayor here, Mayor Alan Arakawa to present to you
the handout that was just passed out. So I'd like to hand this over to the Mayor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much, Committee Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. As
an Administration and in our partnership with the Members of the Council, we have been
charged with trying to look at our County as a whole and to create the most economically viable
situation for the County. At the same time, the Cost of Government Commission has given us
some direction in saying we should be looking at trying to purchase and create our own facilities
rather than go through all of the heartaches that we just went through with the looking at what
could have been property that we developed ourselves and did it at cost efficient rate. Now what
I'm going to do because the hour is getting fairly late and I know all of you guys are tired, we
went around.. .on the, on the second page, we have a list of all the, the locations in Central Maui
of the different departments. If you look, the Fire Department training facility is over by the
airport, Department of Water baseyard is by the airport, the Kahului Fire Station is in the
Kahului Industrial area, Department of Environmental Management baseyard, the sewer
maintenance baseyard is over by the Kanaha Pond Wildlife Sanctuary right across the street, the
rest of the Police Department on Kaahumanu Avenue, and go through and look at all of these
different baseyards that we have here. And what we did was I had my staff go through and take
pictures of a lot of the existing baseyards so that everyone could get a real good idea of what
we're talking about. Now last night I did a PowerPoint for the Waikapu Community Association
showing a lot of these pictures, but I think all of you would, can appreciate the fact that a lot of
the spaces that we have within all of the different departments, the departments are doing the
very best they can with the space that they have and the locations that they have, but the reality
is, they're very overcrowded, they're, they're lacking space. A lot of the situations that they're
in right now, when you start projecting ahead how are we gonna deal with their situations 5, 10,
20, 50 years from now? You know, we can try and squeeze more into these existing spaces or
we can try and do an overall plan to try and utilize what we have in, in, in our County and try and
acquire existing space, about a 100 acres in the Waiko-Waiale area. And if we do this, we'll be
able to, to try and look at all of the, the different baseyard applications as well as the Fire
Department and the Police Department and try and give them the ability to grow into space, to
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give us the ability to plan the buildings that we wanna be able to, to build, plan the equipment
that we wanna have as a County entity. If we don't do this, the way that we do have everything
scattered out right now, we don't have the ability to utilize the size of the County to be able to
maximize the efficiencies of working together as departments and being able to look at the type
of equipments we wanna have to repair and maintain vehicles. You know, things like putting
together hoists for big equipment. If we're gonna put together the proper kind of hoist it's gonna
cost a lot of money and if we do this all separately, each department having to do it separately,
it's gonna cost us even more money because we're duplicating a lot of the equipment. If we
have the major components in one area, and we can share a lot of this kind of equipment, we can
really modernize the way we do things and become much, much more efficient. And I think our
electoratehas asked us to look at government and see how can we improve the way we're
working, the way we're doing things, so we're not doing the same ol', same ol' and costing more
and more every year, but we're actually trying to be able to redesign government into a much
more efficient manner. Now when we went around and we looked at all these different, the
pictures that you're looking at, looking at all these different baseyards, again, part of our analysis
was, are the departments trying to be efficient? And everyone is trying to do and work as
efficiently as possible, but the limitations of the areas that they're working in really constrain the
departments from being able to do what they need to do. And to plan ahead, we need to be able
to try and, and do this in a, in a very, you know, in a professional manner being able to do a
master plan, being able to consolidate all of the, the benefits that we can get by master planning.
So we looked at this area in the Waiko-Waiale area and we've indeed been talking about the
police station and the fire station there for over ten years. The fire station, the study that was
done about a little over ten years ago by the Fire Department in looking at where we need to
locate fire stations so that we're within the insurance range, so that the various communities can
get the proper coverage and the insurance breaks, require us to be somewhere around in this area.
When we're looking at the police coverage, very similar range in area in order to be able to get
out and maximize our police beats. When we start looking at how we can work together as the
different agencies, you know, our Administration is looking at what are a lot of the costs, and a
lot of the costs are one department needs a, needs a backhoe. We go and rent a backhoe if we
don't have it. If, if we need a welder, you know, we hire it out, while that skill may exist in
another department, but because they're scattered, we don't know what the capabilities are,
who's doing what, and we can't cross-utilize our men and manpower and equipment. So what
we're trying to do is consolidate all of these into the skills, into one geographic area so that we
can have the advantage of being able to allow our personnel to work together and to be able to
share equipment. Now the Central area also has a real advantage in that we don't have as much
of the sea breeze. If we're close to the coast, you know, when we look at the Water Department,
we're looking at a lot of the Environmental Management, the baseyards, we're looking at the
closeness to the ocean, we always have to worry about corrosion. So by building more toward
the center, we get away from that, that problem. Also, when we start looking at trying to be able
to maximize all of the infrastructure, if we're all in one area, you know, we just have to pull one
waterline there, we'll pull out --we put in the roadway, we can use it for all of the different
divisions and departments. If we're gonna be putting in virtually every system, we can be
maximizing that benefit by doing it all in one area. Now, the advantage that we have and I--if,
I'm gonna, I'm gonna skip, I'm deliberately skipping over a canned presentation, because I know
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you, as you're going through this, you don't want to listen to a canned presentation. But if you
go all the way to about the third to the last or fourth to the last page, there's a, there's a little map
of the, of the two areas, the areas we're looking at, discussing with A&B for a park and this area.
You notice that the properties abut each other and this allows us to have the flexibility of having
one big parcel when we, when we consolidate it so that we're able to maneuver a lot better and to
master plan a lot better, and that's why we deliberately picked this area. If not, it's gonna be a
fragment along the Waiale Road when Waiale Road is, is constructed. That's really just gonna
be hanging there. For the County, for us to be able to have the two pieces together makes a
whole lot of sense. Now there's been discussion last night at Waikapu about possibly putting the
baseyards closer to Kuihelani Highway or, or putting up buffers, somehow designing it. We
have no objection, no objection at all to looking at these kinds of considerations in the master
plan. In fact, it makes a whole of sense to me as well. So in the, in the long run, you know, we
wanna be able to master plan this so that we can take the community concerns in and adjust to it.
Now, when we're trying to do this and we're trying to present this to you, one of the constraints
that, that we have to work with and one of the things that I, as the Mayor, am bound and
determined to do, is to keep working on projects year round. You know, the normal schedule
that we have to adhere to, in the beginning of the year, we break, we get three or four months
that we just don't do anything except Budget, and then toward the end of the year, this is an
election year, we're gonna go into another time period where almost nothing is gonna go, and at
the end of the year we get the Christmas breaks and all of these kinds of things I'm trying to be
able to take all of these projects and just say, let's go through it and present them as we can. And
let's, let's look at these things realistically. We're, we're working on a year to year Budget. We
can balance all of these things within, within the Budget, and nothing that we're, we're
presenting to you cannot be adjusted within the existing year's Budget. So we're trying to be
very cognizant of the fact that we do have some flexibility in our system to be able to run a
continuous stream of different types of projects and keep doing the work rather than waiting and
waiting and waiting just because of all the, the systemic time delays that we have. In the past,
we've tried to wait and work with these delays and we found that the projects get delayed
because we don't have the, the proper legislation, that we don't have all the research done to, to
fit to it. We're trying to be more systematic and be able to work all year round. Okay, and early
last year, when we came to you with the Budget last year, we started to work on a lot of these
things and you're starting to see them roll periodically throughout the year rather than just being
bunched during the Budget session. Because we can't do all the work and just be ready during
the Budget session and then, you know, just have everything that you want all at one time. If we
do it during the year then we all can study it a lot better, take more time to look at it and be very
systematic about how we're, how we're doing it. When I'm looking at this property, when we
look at it, this is a time for really taking advantage of a time in history where the prices for
property is very low. And there's not gonna be a much better time for us to be able to acquire
property. So we're looking at trying to acquire the properties and then once we acquire the
property, we agree that we wanna do a baseyard, we agree we that we want to create a regional
park then we can start master planning this. We don't wanna do this independently. We wanna
work with you to be able to create the master plan, but we first have to agree on the basic things
that we wanna do and we have to acquire the properties as we can. There have been suggestions
that perhaps we should go out in the middle of the canefield area around the Raceway Park and
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put the baseyards out there. You know, when you start looking at all of the different
justifications for it, and we'll get into this during the discussion on the master plan if you, if you
pass the agreement to purchase this. You'll find that there are gonna be many, many reasons
why this area is much superior than most of the other areas, and some of it will be the dust and
smoke from the cane burning, the cost of being able to bring the infrastructure out to those
areas,the, the distances between the different communities so that it's easier to be able to drive
and to be able to react to emergency situations. We've talked to the Police Department and the
Fire Department as to the location and the desirability of this location not just for a police station
but to be able to build and to leave enough in reserve so that any future expansion may be
necessary not for just a fire station but to be able to put enough space in reserve to do training
centers and to be able to store equipment and be able to plan out 20, 50 years. We don't wanna
be able to get pigeon holed into a very small space where we cannot possibly expand. By putting
the two together, we're looking at close to 300, little over 300 acres, you know, we get--we have
a lot more flexibility in how we can build in the future if we need to be reassessed of what we
have as facilities. And that's really our goal in trying to be able to work with this. Now, we're
also working with Senate President Shan Tsutsui in acquiring--the State is gonna acquire about
70 or 80 acres in the subdivision adjacent to this property as well as A&B, the discussion came
out earlier, has about 50 acres of park space that they're gonna be incorporating as well, if their
project goes through in this, in this area. So if you combine all of that, we'll have little over 400
acres worth of walking parks and we can actually create a very, very comprehensive series of
ball fields, soccer fields, open activities and to be able to coordinate these into much better
working, working areas. So this is what we're, we're looking for. The advantages of the
property, it's central. Advantage of the property, it's flat. When you look at the wind pattern in
this area, it's one of the more protected areas because of its central location. When you're, when
you're looking at the salt,we don't have the salt, we don't have to worry about the tsunamis, and
right now we have favorable market conditions. So the purchase of the property, we have a
landowner that's willing to work with us. We're looking at about $2.5 million for the acquisition
of about 100, for about 100 acres, and he's willing to work with us on putting buffers adjacent to
the 100 acres as well. So in totality, what we're working with may be slightly over because of
the generosity of the landowner. So we have a very cooperative landowner that wants to build
something that's gonna be very beneficial. Overall, when we start looking at, at these and we
start looking at what we need to accomplish, from the County perspective if we segregate all of
the different facilities and we have to buy one lot at a time, a space for a new fire station, a space
for a new police station, a space for a Public Works baseyard, a space for a Water Department
baseyard. It's no wonder that many of these areas have been crowded for over a decade without
being addressed. And our Administration does not want to just sit back and allow all of the
challenges that we should be facing to be left for the next Administration or the Administration
after that. We wanna be able to really work with the concerns of the community. That is our
goal. Again, what we're looking at is the concept; the master plan still needs to follow. We need
to acquire the property first. Once we have site control then we can start contracting for the
master plan. Now I'm also gonna point out that when we start, we're gonna be coming to you
with, with a lot of different things to be, to be working with in the future. And our general
program is to be able to talk to you year round so that we have this opportunity to have good
conversation and then to plan throughout the entire year and work together on, on building these
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consensus plans, okay. So if you're wondering why there is no master plan yet, because we can't
advance to the master plan stage until we have site control and agreement and concept this is
what we wanna do. Once we have that, then we'll move to the next step, then the following step.
And any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mayor. Yeah, I do have some questions. You know, we've
heard public testimony this afternoon, and, and I just heard that in regards to the location of a
facility that will house County departments that you had indicated that even locating this
proposal, you know, what you had in mind in regards to the County requirements closer to
Kuihelani is an option.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Absolutely.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and you know, there's a lot of question. I received e-mails in regards to
the outlaying areas especially Makawao and, you know, for the life of me I cannot see, you
know, consolidating Makawao into Central Maui, because it make more sense that we continue
to have that baseyard out there,makes it easier to mobilize for Upcountry.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, there's no intent to centralize the Makawao or the Lahaina
baseyard into this area. We're talking the Central Maui baseyard area, the Kahului-Wailuku
area. Those are the baseyards we're looking at for this area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Yeah, you know, as one testifier had said, you know, Mr. Mayor,
and I respect his opinion in regards to this 100 acres, and if you should purchase it and locate the,
the County's requirements to closer to Kuihelani, to me it made good sense, good sense. You
create open space and a buffer, possibly 100-acre park land, you know, on one side of the
highway, proposed highway and another 100-acre--120--or by the time the State kicks in, maybe
almost 200 acres of park land on the other side, with your 100-acre County facility that you
wanna build. And made good sense that you, you, you consolidate and you centralize part of the
functions that we do here in Maui County. You know, it brings efficiency to the County in
regards to certain operations in the County that we do. So I'll have Members ask questions.
Everybody get questions. Mr. Hokama followed by Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Mayor, thank you very much for presenting a
consideration, a concept which I very much am interested in. Just couple of questions, please,
Mr. Mayor and I know again, this is very conceptual at this time. There's nothing very specific.
So I appreciate that. As part of the consideration and I sit next to a colleague that is much more
learned than I am with this island's situation, but does water come with the land?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: It is something that we'll be working with. We believe that we'll be able to put
water to this area and the, the owner has talked to us about possibly providing us water for this
area. So it's something that we're in discussion of. There's also another area that we're looking
at. You know, the Department of Environmental Management is looking at acquiring, possibly
acquiring, the old line that the—effluent line that came from Maui Pine, ran up
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Kamehameha Avenue all the way out to this area. If we can tie that in right by Maui Beach
Hotel, some place in that alignment, we can actually bring the reuse water from the, from the
Kahului treatment plant through the old line, the abandoned line all the way out to the Central
Maui area. So we could then be, be using about 4 to 5 million gallons of the reuse water, and we
could, we could also blend that with the Maui Pine well. So we're looking at multiple ways to
get water to this area for irrigation as well as potable water.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: All right, I think that's wonderful. Would make it better for me though if
part of this deal would be that the County would be guaranteed "x" amount, 100,000 gallons per
day for its use. And since you brought up that waste treatment plant, I would hope that part of
your--if this moves forward, Mr. Mayor, that you would look at relocating that Kahului
wastewater treatment plant out of the zone, the tsunami zone also. I think that maybe is a smart
consideration if we're gonna expand the effort and potential financial resources to make this
concept go to the next phases. Let me ask you this other question since, you know, it's been a
project I've supported in the past, would this potential concept of yours, Mr. Mayor, what does
this mean to the County's municipal parking lot project, whereby we had hoped to move some of
our operational requirements there and make this more a County seat and Administrative center
for the County of Maui?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: I'm actually glad that you asked that. We do have a Re-Wailuku project that's
going through and doing an analysis of the, the County parking lot in the middle of Wailulcu, and
hopefully by the end of that project, we'll be able to determine what we need to do revitalize
Wailuku or abandon it if we don't come out to a reasonable conclusion ... (inaudible)...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Mayor, you gotta understand I'm committed to this community
and this town, okay. I'm gonna die before I let this County seat move from Wailuku.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Well, let me, let me, let me finish with this. I'm, I'm suggesting that we, we
want to be able to come up with a reasonable methodology by which we can redo the
Wailuku Town, okay. Now also, and because we've had discussions with the Councils, past
Councils about redoing the seat here, last year you commissioned us to be able to look at the-this entire area and look at the redevelopment of the post office area. So we have a study
currently going on, a campus study for the...for this municipal area that includes the gravel lot,
the, the whole footprint of this municipal area, and we'll be coming to you as soon as that study
is done, with the questions as to what is it that you really want to be able to build in this area?
We're not looking at moving out of Wailuku with a major structure, but we are looking at trying
to build office space so we no longer have to rent. The, the whole goal is for us...looking at all
these areas that we're renting all over the place and trying to build our own so that we get away
from all these costly rentals and we actually consolidate a lot of the areas. The Wailuku--the
parking lot area,I want to sort of reserve the discussion until we get the Re-Wailuku project and
come, come to you with suggestions of how we need to do that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fair, that's fair, Mayor, that's very fair, Mayor.
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MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's very fair. I just was curious because, you know, you and I have
talked candidly one on one before.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And you know of my commitment to this community and this County seat,
and, and part of the questions why I'm asking is I need to share this with you, yeah, Mayor and it
was brought up also at our National Conference two weeks ago, why--and coming from Lanai
appreciate this please, Mayor. Why aren't we--you know, I'm understanding why we look at
these considerations, Mayor, because we're looking at the future and it's very important and I
agree with you, but for a lot of people including our island of Lanai, and I say, our island because
we all have responsibilities, their issue is we need to talk more about jobs now.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I bring that up because as of yesterday when I checked, Lanai is now
paying $5.79 a gallon for regular unleaded fuel.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Five dollars, seventy-nine cents, okay. So for my--our people there,
Mr. Mayor, jobs is more important right now than looking way down the road for potential
improvements to County service, and for them it's survival, yeah. And so I just share that with
you that, 'cause I think we're at a point where we need to get some balance, and while I
appreciate this kind of considerations,' I hope you can appreciate my comment that we should
also look at something immediate that we can try and get our people back to work so that we can
continue to afford this opportunities in the future, Mr. Mayor. And I don't expect an answer,
Mr. Mayor, but I just share that with you because it's the frustrations that is being shared with
me back home. And, and I just share that with all of my colleagues and you, Mr. Mayor, that it
is around everybody's kitchen table topic. And so I appreciate whatever you can do to help us
balance this considerations with the current need of getting people back to work. I thank you for
that, Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: And, and I--we're, we're in exact alignment in jobs are very important. I will
point out to you that last year we went to the Council or to the State Legislators, and
Senator Tsutsui and a lot of the Legislators got behind us to get production and building credits
for our film industry. On Lanai, I was just told that there are several pilot films that are gonna be
going to Lanai as part of this effort that we're putting in. Those are jobs that are gonna be
created. We're also been looking very hard to try and get the alternative energy programs going.
So those are jobs that we wanna be able to create, and because we're talking about different topic
that's -- we could meet separately and I'll go through the specifics, but that is one of our primary
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moves and at this time, you know, we're, we're also trying to be able to economize and go
through and cut a lot of our costs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: So the budget that we'll send down to you, you're gonna see we're and you've,
you've heard, you know, we're trying to go to being able to get purchase power agreements, and
we're trying to be able to cut back on some of these things like the lease we're spending, so we
can actually use this money in other areas like purchasing land. So...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate that very much, Mayor, your, your comments and, and I thank
you for your thoughts, I do this afternoon. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair Mr. Mayor, we heard from some testifiers
saying yeah, buy the land anyway for possible different uses, and, and I'm, I'm supportive of
getting the land 'cause it is a fairly good price and we're just supposedly coming out of the low
end of, of price for land, so this is probably a really good time to buy this. Should we buy this
land, I'm assuming that you still have--I mean, you say you still have to go through a whole
master plan situation and it's gonna be a long time before we can afford to move a police station,
move a fire station and--so what are your, while we're doing the plan and, and while we're trying
to figure out what's gonna happen there, what are your immediate plans for that land if we were
to buy it? Are you just gonna let it sit there? Is there something we could do to make use of it
immediately?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Councilmember, very good question. Now, all of you are very familiar with
the permitting system and having to go through the SMAs or the EAs, Environmental
Assessments, through the permitting process and the land--being able to get the land to where we
need it, okay. What we're going to be working on is trying to create some of the park areas first.
So what we wanna do is...we are negotiating with A&B, so we'll be coming to you very shortly
with that negotiation as well. Once we can combine the two properties and we can do the, we
can come up with a master plan on how to design the active playing field, those are gonna be the
areas that we can work on almost immediately to start creating active playing fields. The
different structures that we need, we're gonna have to time out which we're going to create first.
You know, the police station in Kihei is costing us by the time we're done close to $37 million.
So when we're talking about 2.--$2.7 million for acquisition of a 100 acres, I mean, we're
starting to look at the cost efficiencies of doing these, but we have to do things in stages. We
cannot do it all at one time. And that master plan will allow us to be able to see conclusively
how we're going to have to put the money to be able to develop these different areas and what
it's gonna take to be able to do it. But we're looking at the park area as being the most doable
immediately.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, and the other thing is, is I'm looking through the resolution
and it doesn't say that we must have this for a baseyard. This is just a possible use is what it says
in the resolution. So you're -MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I mean, you could flip it like, like the several of the testifiers said and
put the baseyard down or -MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yeah -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I mean, this is just the first of many stages to -MAYOR ARAKAWA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --to get a master area going.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Couch. Before I call on the next Member, I do have a
fast question for you, Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know the Waikapu Community Center is very small. And, and, I can see a
need for a larger center to service the Waikapu community and the possibility of utilizing that
area, that existing Waikapu area as recreational facilities for you know, the youngsters.
Hopefully that when you do your master planning that you also include a facility that can serve
as a Waikapu community in that vicinity that we're talking about rather than, you know, putting
in County equipment. So I kinda envision in my mind what can be done on that piece of land,
you know, not only active baseball fields, soccer fields, but envision a community center in that
area. Comments?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Pontanilla, you and I have had this discussion and
Senator Tsutsui has had a discussion, the need for a major community center in this area. Now
part of the State--the money that was allocated last year is to create about a 70- or 80-acre park.
And we're trying to again, coordinate the different uses. But also part of that was to be able to
create a community center and that's something that you've insisted on then we, we absolutely
believe in. Where exactly it's going to be located, at this time a lot of it depends on what A&B
does with their, with their project. So we have to be able to follow what's going to be happening
with the A&B project. If it gets passed, we can locate the community center some place in that
project. If it doesn't get passed then we can use this area to create the community center which
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is why we have to be able to look at this master plan over a number of years. The, the, just the
active fields alone, you know, you guys should be glad you're not sitting in my office where
we've had so many different organizations complain, because they don't have practice fields,
they can't do their leagues, and we're short of space and we're trying to work the park areas so
that they're, they're more usable. But because of the overbooking of the, of a lot of these parks,
just the maintenance has become a nightmare. So this area would allow us to be able to rest
some of the areas while we're maintaining it and be able to come up with a real plan to work
with it. And Councilmember Victorino has, you know, talked to me about try to get involved in
master planning and being able to create the baseball area and others. We're, we're, we're open
to any help that we can get in trying to work in these areas as well. So we know that there are
needs within the community. If we don't create the active playing fields in some place in this
area, the Waikapu community is gonna have just a dinky little park, and with all the expansion
of, of, the, the housing that's going on, you know, Jesse Spencer's subdivision has no real park in
that area. The area above the road has just a tiny little park. We have to be able to look at the
needs for all those—the, the kids in those areas and the adults. So we're trying to, to see how we
can combine this opportunity to get land relatively inexpensive before it all gets committed, and
at the same time it will work the budget that we have to work with in all the different areas. So,
it's a very, it's gonna be a very important coordination between the Council and the
Administration as we start looking at how we're going to stage all of these different areas after
we've come up with the master plan. 'Cause it's not only this area, it's the County Building, it's
possibly looking at a new civic center where the War Memorial Gym is, and possibly moving the
swimming pool and creating a swimming complex. 'Cause those, you know, those facilities are
40, 50 years old now. And we can, you know like a car, you can run it just so long before the
repair and maintenance start catching up with you and everything starts falling apart. And that's
where we're at with a lot of these facilities. So we're trying to see how we can fit all these things
together. The treatment plant that Councilmember Hokama was talking about, that's something
we really need to consider as well. So we have to locate a piece of property so that we can create
a new treatment plant. Also, I think Kyle Ginoza talked to some of you in Committee yesterday
about the--going out for an RFQ to try and take our landfill and creating a project where we, we
actually can look at possibly converting the trash into a fuel source to be able to create an asset
for ourselves and to take care of all the disposables and the, you know, the problem that we have
as well. So there are a lot of things on the table that we have to be able to work with in totality
and the budgeting, those considerations all have to be coordinated. So we're working with
Budget Chair Pontanilla on looking at a lot of these things and still coming up with a viable
budget and within a range where the people here can afford it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Mayor, I am intrigued, of course, by all of
the planning and visioning and I think a lot of good stuff going on in terms of looking to the
future and how we're gonna handle our needs. I, I like the idea, you know, of purchasing land
and regardless of whether it turns into what we're talking about now or something else, that's
okay. The only thing that I have a little bit of concern about and I want it on the record is, you
know, we sat here last Budget and we had really heartfelt discussions about our bond rating and
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the amount of debt. And we're sitting here today right before Budget and actually talking about-I, I added it up kind of cursory, it comes to about $9 million that we're talking about in
GO Bonds. I'm assuming that when we get the Budget next week Friday, that this will not in
any way hamper what is--what we're gonna be asked for in that Budget in terms of a ceiling. I'd
like to hear from Mr. Baz.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No, our, our debt ceiling, debt limit will not be anywhere near
reached even with this $9 million additional that you may be proposing for today. And our, our
debt service costs are lower actually this year than they have been in previous years as well. And
so we're looking for--you know, we, we realize the cost savings and we understand that there's a
cost savings and not having as much mortgage to pay and much debtservice. But just, you know,
one cost factor when we're looking at this project specifically, in the, the idea--you know, the
Mayor gave us along with the Cost of Government Commission's review this past year of
owning versus leasing. The Department of Housing and Human Concerns currently leases the
Old Ting's Building over behind the--well, I used to know it as the bowling alley but now it's the
storage facility, and as well as One Main Plaza, and so we looked at the requirements they had
and the cost of a construction. I, I just last month, February 14, 2012, I received a proposal from
Maui Lath to build in the Village Center. They have out there about an acre of land, it was going
to cost us $2.4 million, and they're estimating 22,000 square foot of office space at about
$61/2 million, so we're looking at, you know, an $8 million project or so for--$8.8 million project
I think to be specifically--to build them a new office space and with the land costs in there. Now
we're not at all saying that Human Concerns would go out to this site. In fact, we would more
prefer them to be someplace co-located here as the administrative, you know, people, kind of
touchy feely stuff that they do. But as a comparison, you can see that for oneacre of land less
than a mile away from the land that we're buying now, it's definitely something that's a cost
effective manner.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I thank you for that and you know, I trust that you folks are paying
very close attention to not leading us to spending more money than we cannot afford.
MR. BAZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But that's comforting to know, and I think that, you know, purchasing
this land is good. I'm not really sure after listening to the testimony this morning, if maybe we
need to wait to have a better plan and kind of consider implications that people are worried
about, about noise and whatever, but as far as purchasing the land, I think we should get it.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question for Mr. Baz. How does the bond rating
companies look at land owned by the County of Maui?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 13, 2012

MR. BAZ: The debt ceiling just to, and I guess, well, I'll try to answer this as short as possible. The
debt ceiling is based on the County's assessed value in general, all of the what the municipality,
you know, is, you know, encompassed and that's, who, no matter who owns it. They do also
look at an asset-to-debt ratio that is something that they, they consider as part of their factors in,
if we're financially stable or not and in the fact of, you know, what we can do to liquidate assets
should we need to, to pay back. I mean, a bond rating is really--the main concern of the creditors
is they, they wanna get paid. I mean, you know, that's—so they're looking for something that,
that they can look at. When we say with a General Obligation Bond that we are issuing this bond
on the full faith and credit of the County, that includes any assets that we may have under our
belt and this would definitely be a good asset for us to have under our belt.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And basically that's what they told me when we went into--in
front of the Bond Council, that all they care is that we pay our bills. And, and you know, I take it
as, you know, if we're talking about a master plan then all of the communities surrounding this
particular location will have inputs when we do the master plan, am I right?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, an Environmental Assessment would be required before we move forward with
this Change in Zoning or anything. So the, the community, whether they be within the, the
surrounding area, the 500, you know, feet area or that general community, is gonna have
multiple times to provide input during the Environmental Assessment process as well as
opportunities when we come here before Council for funding and, and approvals and different
things like that. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you. And I understand that, in fact I had two Staff people attend
that meeting. There were a lot of questions, a lot of concerns in regards to that particular area
you know, regarding a --as a County facilities. And you know, by you folks going out to the
community, get community input, you know, I think that's the way to go, you know, less
questions in the end. So, Mr. Victorino, questions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Three things, Mr. Mayor, so it be on
record so people hear it especially Waikapu because you heard the concerns last night. That you
are very willing to move the baseyard if this all can be worked out to Kuihelani Highway or
close to that area taking it away from where the homes--and their homes and others will be
probably built out around. You're willing to look at that?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: I'm open to any suggestions and when we start doing the master plan, we'll get
everybody involved and, yeah, we're very willing to look at it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Number two, that all of this master plan that you're putting
together will not result in, for example, one of the things you said last night and I'll bring it up
because you said it, is that you would like to see the police station moved out and that whole area
made into a medical campus, a medical facility, and some people balked at that idea. I mean,
improving the area and putting police and fire out there for storage, training and all that other
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stuff, I got no problem. But moving the entire facility, maybe without ever looking at doing the
other things kinda was kinda harsh in my mind and in some other people's mind.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Let me clarify that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: --because I believe we--you're, you're misinterpreting what I said.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So others did, too. So go ahead, clarify so that we all
know what you said.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: What we, what we talked about is the existing police station,moving the police
out of the existing police station and making the Waiko-Waiale the main station is what we, we
talked about.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay. Because as you can see in your pictures, a lot of the, the space
requirements for the Police Department--the place is just too small. It needs to have a lot of
improvement. It may be we'd wanna use it as a substation, but we do need to create a major
police headquarters with enough space, and plan so that, you know, 10, 20, 50 years from now,
you can have some expansion and you can work with it. It was, it was--I did not say that we
were not going to put a police station in this, in this area. One of the items that we are planning
to look at is definitely a police station.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay, so, so just that clarification was important, okay.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Right. The medical area we're talking about was the hospital.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: All the way out to Kaahumanu Avenue creating that whole area into a medical
area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: And that's in the, the community plan and in the--all the plans that we've had
since I was on the CAC, that whole area was to be allocated toward medical facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. It's just--I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, but these had to be clarified
because there were some misunderstanding last night and I just want to make sure that the public
is assured, --
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MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, that what you said and what you, what you meant to
say, we're all clear on it, yeah.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and, and the third thing I guess is very important in all of
this, I agree with Mr. Mayer--I don't agree with him a lot so this is really astonishing when,
when you say I agree with Mr. Mayer, buy this property and then you can use it for anything else
later, but land banking You know, and we've talked about that in the past and we've never
really done it. We have some opportunities now and so, at first I was not really keen on this
whole idea and I'm not.. .totally sold on the idea, but I can support it conceptually because,
again, once we own the land, that I can handle because we own the land and we can do things
with it. So I can go along with that. Last thing I'll say is, don't forget the traffic light. Don't
forget the—you made the promise, and I said I would be looking for it, and the people of
Waikapu asked you, and you said, I'll put it in if you say, you'll get the other help. So
everybody be looking for a traffic light for the Waikapu Gardens. Thank you, Mr. Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yeah, the Waikapu Gardens area ultimately, you know, we never planned in a
traffic light for that area. So I can see putting a traffic light in that area one in the three -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Entrances, yeah.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: --yeah, in the entrances, but we already have put this year's Budget to press.
So you won't see it, but what we will do is we will work with--working toward getting a traffic
light in that area. I have no problem with doing that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Mayor. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Administration at this time?
Mr.--Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Mayor, real briefly in the master
planning process, will the master plan include those, say for example, baseyards that will be
relocated? What--what's gonna happen to those parcels?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: What we, what we will do in the planning process, the Administration and the
Council members, is we're gonna have to really look at what our assets are and whether we want
to be able to completely relocate and close down or we wanna partially relocate and close down
or we wanna convert the properties to another use, because, you know, if we have the asset, we
wanna be able to use it somehow. But we are going to have to decide how we want to maximize
the benefits of each of our assets. So while we, while we plan out the timeframe for it, we'll also
be having to do the construction and then after that we can decide, you know, or during this
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planning process what we're going to do with the specific facilities. Some areas like this
baseyard might be converted into parking area for Wailuku if we're gonna do a redevelopment of
Wailuku. There's a real shortage of parking. That may be an area we want to put parking or for
our County Building. There's any number of different alternatives, but I think we have to have
the discussion specifically,so.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So that, that will or will not be part of the master plan?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: That will be part of what we have discussions when we start doing the master
plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'm guessing that Department of Parks and
Recreation baseyard is probably not going to be relocated since it's in the middle of a 160-acre
park. Would it, would it make sense to move that to this consolidated area?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: When we start looking at our parks,if we create a major park complex in this
area, we're gonna have to store the, the lawnmowers and all the equipment that's associated
with. So in every major park we generally have a baseyard area. Keopuolani Park has a
baseyard area. Lahaina by the civic area, we've got baseyard area. So this area, because it's
such a large area, will naturally have to have a baseyard for Parks to be able to contain all the
equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My concern is when I look at, at what's moving or what might
move,it's the total acreage of the Public Works, the Parks, Environmental Management and, and
Water. The total's 9.4 acres and when I, when I look at the 100 acres, it seems a little large and
I, I just see dollar signs after, you know, discussing the, discussing some of the numbers we've
been playing around with today. Be a little more comfortable if, if that—more park than baseyard
as we go forward. I guess my, my feeling is that it makes sense to move ahead with the
purchase, but I'd like to think that maybe the baseyard component of it is not as, not as large as
the full 100 acres. But again, I'm, we're talking today like we're just made out of money, and I
don't know where the money is gonna come from when we've--you know, we have facilities
already built where the Department of Water Supply is, is--has got their baseyard. We've got
facilities already built at all the other baseyards. So, you know, he's--Mr. Victorino was talking
about being, being Portuguese, well, I'm part Scotch and I, and I work for someone who's
Chinese and my immediate boss is Sri Lankan, and you know, so we're, we're taught to treat our
boss's money like it's our own and I know we all feel that way here. This is making me feel a
little a little antsy, but.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Again, Councilmember White, when we talk about master planning and I've,
I've mentioned that--this we're looking at a long-term plan. There's no reason why the empty
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space, whatever is not developed rightaway can't be used be used for park or for some other
purpose until we have a need for it, but we wanna be able to have the ability to expand as we
need it and...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, well, even, even parks though cost us, I think if you take a look at
the, the cost of operating parks it ranges from $15,000 to $20,000 per acre. So even just turning
it into parks turns into operating costs, so.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: And I will also point out to you that all the statistics show that not having parks
and having our children form gangs and getting into trouble costs us a lot more.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, there's no, no question that we need and we're short of parks.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: We're, we're tremendously short right now and, you know, so we have to do a
balance. How fast we develop these park areas will be determined by what we can afford and
what the needs are. There's no--there's nothing that says we're gonna develop everything
tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I understand that.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Quite frankly, we're not. You know, but if we have the reserve, we have the
land there, we have land bank; we have the capability of doing it. If we don't have the land bank
then we do what we're, we're stuck with right now is we scrounge for every square foot that we
can in the middle of developments so we don't have enough space for baseball fields. We end
up paying four or five times as much, because we're cutting blue rock and we're trying to
develop areas that just not really meant to be park areas. So and the--looking at efficiency and
looking at the how we're gonna be able to cut those costs and what we wanna do, finding the
areas that are suitable and the master planning it long-term is much, much better than just going
and, and looking in desperation for something we must fit in.' Cause lot of times, you know, the
foot won't fit in the slipper, and we still try and shove it in because that's all we've got. So this
is where I think master planning it longterm and being able to build into the master plan is-makes much more sense.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, for me, it's at that--I'm at that time of day, so let me just say I
would request a deferral on this matter. I think it has enough merits to--for us to talk about this
more. We are gonna enter Budget in a week, and one of the things that maybe Mr. Baz can
prepare for the Budget review is if this moves forward and as I understand from the presentation
of the multiple departmental use of this then maybe he can tell us how this be assessed even if
we go with one GO Bond will each special fund of each department be assessed a certain debt
service and how does it relate to rates and fees adjustments for this upcoming Budget? And I
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think that would give the Committee a little bit better understanding of how this is gonna be
repaid and how we might wanna look at rates and fees in the upcoming Budget to prepare for this
potential debt service because it's not only about the land, Chairman. It's about the facilities that
will potentially be built on this potential acquisition. And so I find there's a lot of merit. I think
the Mayor has challenged us by presenting some, I would say, some very broad stroked
initiatives, but I would like to have additional time for us to work with his designated people to
see if we can move this forward at an affordable price. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion on this matter here? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This is to either Mr. Bar or Mr. Mayor,
whoever's been doing the negotiation. How, how good is that price or how long is that price
good at that level? Are we under a time crunch to...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, if we could bring the Director of Finance down and possibly answer that
question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Mr. Agsalog, please.
MR. AGSALOG: The current--we have a tentative deadline of March 31 st of negotiating this
particular--but we have been in contact with them and working with the seller to try to move this
project along. It's, it's been very, very good discussion with the seller to get this through, so
should the Committee decide to act on it and give me more leverage to negotiate with them, I
think I'm sure the, the seller will be able to work with us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. So, so we're not looking at it--I mean, well, you said
March 31 st but possibly longer?
MR. AGSALOG: We never asked for extension yet, Mr. Chair, but you know, again, as you know, you
are the one that give me the full authorization to execute any agreement with a seller. So that
depends on your command to how we proceed on this. We made this as an offer for you to work
with us in, in the process of acquiring this land.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I, I kinda like what Mr. Hokama has to say, but if there's a,
there's a deadline then I'd rather move, but.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Mr. Couch, just let me point out that even if it passes out today, it's
gonna take two readings and we're gonna fall into April. And the Chair has another meeting on
March 27 th which we can take up this particular issue in regards to the 100 acres. Hopefully, on
our March 27 th meeting, that we have all the information that is required by, you know, you

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 13, 2012

folks. And the Chair has no problem in deferring because even if we pass it in, in, today,
because it takes two readings to get this thing through, you know, whoever is the, the seller of
this land going, going have to negotiate with our Administration regards to the date itself which
would be the second meeting in April which if this thing passes through the Committee for
second and final. So we still have the month of April to, to look at. Mr. Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Chairman Pontanilla, we do have the, the owner of the property here. Now,
what we didn't discuss with them, and I think it would be fair to ask them if they would be
willing to wait a little bit, because we do have an agreement at this point and I'm not sure what
his financial requirements are as to whether or not he may need the money sooner or later. So I
would think it would be better if we just ask it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, Chairman, point of order please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I prefer not to negotiate at one Committee meeting, please? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, actually, Chair, I was going to ask your permission to bring
him up to ask him if he would allow us to extend. I'm not--I didn't think that was negotiation,
but if my colleague feels that's negotiation then I won't go against it, but I wanted to ask the
owner if he felt that, you know, we all--he knows what our feelings are, if he would be willing,
but I won't go any further than that. That was my only request to you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I was just going to note that whether it gets passed out of Committee
today or gets passed out of Committee March 27 th , the second reading as you mentioned of this
would be the same day of April 20 th , and so it, it wouldn't change whether or not they agree to us
delaying it, you know, a week or so. As far as the Committee goes, wouldn't have any standing
in, in our ability to purchase based on second reading of, of April 20 th • So I just wanted to
remind you, and thank you for pointing that out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I, I'll give you folks that opportunity to negotiate with the developer
since, you know, we cannot pass this thing on second and final until April the 20 th .
MR. BAZ: So, Mr. Chair, if there are items or clarifications, questions that the Committee has, I would
be very happy to, to answer them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 13, 2012

MR. BAZ: If you could get those to me in writing and then we'll be able to respond prior to the
meeting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, if you do have any more questions in regards to questions
that you wanna ask the Budget Director regarding this particular 100 acres, please forward it to
the Chair and we'll get information to you folks hopefully by March 27 th meeting. Mr. Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yeah, and because of the discussion in this Committee about possibly
flip-flopping the--where the baseyards would be with the park, I would like to point out that we-we'll still be negotiating with A&B as well. So, if we can come to some kind of an agreement,
we'll send it down to Council so that at the same time, you'll know that the movement is
possible, if that's okay with you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and I think this fiscal year we had allocated some monies to go ahead
for you to negotiate with A&B -MAYOR ARAKAWA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the purchase of the 200 plus acres. So you have that ability.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, any more questions, discussion? If not, the Chair will defer
this item to our meeting on March 27 th , this month.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With no objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: With no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Mayor for being here.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. May I ask for a short recess before we
continue?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Chair is gonna call a -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --short, maybe five minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll reconvene at 5:45. This meeting is now in recess till 5:45. We've got
one more item to, to discuss on the agenda. This meeting is in recess.. . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

5:38 p.m.

RECONVENE:

5:50 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
And thank you, Members, for sticking it out. You know, I know the first three agenda'd items
were tough, tough issues, because it involves a lot of money, taxpayers' money, but I think, you
know, we accomplished some good issues today.And we got one more that we're gonna be
discussing and this is BF-48 Amending Fiscal Year 2012 Budget: Department of Environmental
Management, Solid Waste Operations Program (Curbside Recycling Pilot Program). The
purpose of the proposed bill is to recognize $440,000 in Carryover/Savings in the Solid Waste
Management Fund and increasing the Solid Waste Operations Program by the same amount. A
Certification of Additional Revenues was signed by the Mayor on September 30, 2011.
ITEM BF-48:

AMENDING FY 2012 BUDGET: DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT, SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS PROGRAM (CURBSIDE
RECYCLING PILOT PROGRAM) (CC 11-265)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the Budget Director first, and
then the Deputy Director from Environmental Management.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you for scheduling this item at this meeting today. This is
something that we proposed in the Fiscal Year 2012 Operating Budget last year,something that
the community and prior Councils have discussed and have shown that the Administration
should be moving towards a curbside recycling project. What we are proposing is a pilot project
so that we can see what the efficiencies and effectiveness are, and we do have the Deputy
Director of Department of Environmental Management, Mr. Mike Miyamoto, here to answer any
pertinent questions that you might have related to this Budget amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Baz, and Members, we did have a presentation by
Director Ginoza in regards to the recycling program for Maui County and this pilot program.
And at this time, I'd like to call on Deputy Director Miyamoto for comments.
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MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you mentioned, we did speak about this yesterday in the
Infrastructure Committee and we did talk about the pilot curbside recycling project. This project
is for two South Maui refuse routes in roughly around, somewhere around maximum 2,000
homes. If you recall during Budget last year, we showed the three-can plan that we're looking
at, the existing trash bin along with a green one for green waste and a blue one for recyclables.
The approximate cost that we're asking for right now is the 440,000. Primarily most of that is
gonna go to the 4,000 bins that we're gonna have to buy for this, 2,000 green, 2,000 blue.
Additional funds are for distribution of those bins to the various homes. We're gonna do some
advertising, we're gonna do some public outreach for education. You know, education is very
important as we found out from our sister islands. You know, one didn't have good education;
their program is no longer viable. Another department had another--another island had great
communication and their programs are thriving. So we also have additional funds in there for
additional processing of the recyclables. Someone will have to have some kind of a material
recovery for the recyclables. At Budget last year we did have a concern raised about--reaching
an agreement with UPW. We've succeeded in reaching an agreement with UPW last year in
2011. Just to give you an idea of the total plan, the total island-wide plan would cost about
$5.8 million for our existing customers. That's it, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Also from Solid Waste just like to recognize, Tracy Takamine.
Members, any questions for the Department? Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Miyamoto, question on compliance. If
somebody, you know, puts--starts, keeps putting recyclables in the regular trash or puts regular
trash in the--how, how are you gonna handle that?
MR. MIYAMOTO: As part of the upcoming RFP for the processing contract, we're implementing a lot
of report requirements for the processing end of it, so we can know where the contamination is
coming from. In this pilot project as it's only coming from primarily from one vehicle because
there's only one driver that we impacted in the UPW contract, we will know where that came
from, and then once we know which day it is, whether it's the Thursday person or the--then we
can start doing further investigations. Whether it be our refuse staff or our recycling section can
start the investigation process and we can start looking into where that contamination is coming
from.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Yeah, thank you, Department, for the overview
yesterday. Just curious this gets pushed forward, how quickly will this come online; is there a
specific date on that?
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MR. MIYAMOTO: As we had mentioned yesterday I think the proposed launch date would be
September of this year. We'd need time to order the carts and then once we order the carts,
there's a lead time and we'll start the education program and the outreach to the community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not, not really questions, Chair, but I wanna express my strong support
for getting started. I think that this is really important. I, like the testifier this morning who said
that half of her rubbish is green waste, I think that's the case with our family too. We don't have
that much trash for two of us and so a lot of the stuff that goes in that second barrel is green
waste. So I'd like to see us get started. I really think this is a really important thing and I'd like
to thank you for bringing it up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I, too, agree that this is not long overdue, but it's
certainly due. To be responsible stewards of this place, we need to start recycling so that we're
not just sending everything into our solid waste facilities. And I'm sure there're lots of
questions, but I think we need to give the Department the opportunity to move forward with this
and see where the weaknesses and strengths are and so that we can expand it to control more of
our, our waste. So thank you for bringing it forward and thank you to the Department for putting
this, putting this together, and I think it's time to move, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino followed by Chair Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll give it to Mr. Mateo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. And I just want for clarification
purposes that the two routes, the two Kihei routes, is it all of just Kihei only or it extends out,
outside of Kihei or what is the area?
MR. MIYAMOTO: The first area is in the Maui Meadows area because that's a very rural area, has a
lot of green waste. So we can see if that, the participation in that kind of a community that has a
lot of vegetation, and there is an existing private recycling program up there, so we can see how,
you know, if that community is very--much more recyclable conscious. So if we see a good
participation rate then we can draw some conclusions and make--adjust the program. The other
community is a more urban residential along South Kihei. It's about five or six streets, primary
streets, mauka-makai streets that carry almost, I'd say, about half the amount of homes. So it's
not the entire South Maui area, but it's a small section of South Maui somewhere just north of
Maui Meadows. So it's a small area. It represents more of an urban area, somewhat like
Kahului. You know, we expect less--there's less vegetation there, but they have access to a

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 13, 2012

recycling center that we have and so we wanna see how that impacts and get the data, so we can
see how we adjust the program.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Chair, that was really the only question I had just to
be sure of the two routes that was cited, and when you're ready, we're ready as well. So, ready
for the question, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I mean, my, my and Mr. Mateo stole my thunder so I
am now leave it at that. However, I was hoping that we would get something in Central Maui
very soon, because, you and I both agree, you know, the close proximity also, and the need here
is especially in these areas where recycling now has become very prevalent and we have a
number--I've seen like five or six recycling centers pop up in the last year. All of a sudden, boy
they're, they're promulgating which is great. There's one of those things I'd like to say is really
working out. So I hope the next move would be somewhere in Central Maui either in
Mr. Pontanilla or, or in my area, 'cause I think they really would benefit also especially green
waste 'cause exactly like Ms. Baisa said, I could get one, one rubbish container, one-third the
size of the one I have and that would take care all the waste we have. The rest of the time, every
two weeks, the guy comes clean the yard, that's all, that's when I get 'em filled up. It's the green
waste every two weeks. Other than that, my can goes half empty almost every time. So they like
my, my can because it's very light to vroom and go. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Excuse me, I just have one fast
one. As we move forward to recycling, will we see a reduction of your drop site locations?
MR. MIYAMOTO: You mean the recycling centers?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Well, that's what we're hoping the data can tell us whether or not we can decrease
those sites. As you've noticed, as Member Victorino mentioned that there has been a number of
private companies who put up recycling centers. So if the program works and we have a great
diversion rate, there may be a justification to reduce the number of centers and eventually
possibly leasing out those lands to those private people who may be leasing somewhere else.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Thank you. And then these bins once we approve this
allocation, the Department is gonna expand that $440,000 through education and purchasing of
the bins?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, we're prepared to--we have a contractor that we deal with on the regular bins,
the trash bins, and we've been working with him to be, prepare--he was prepared long ago, so
he's pretty much got everything all ready and all he needs to--the go-ahead to start
manufacturing.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Any more questions, Members? Seeing none, the Chair would
like to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair's recommendation is to pass on first reading, A Bill for an
Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget for the County of Maui as it Pertains to
Estimated Revenues; Department Of Environmental Management - Solid Waste Operations
Program; Solid Waste Management Fund; Total Operating Appropriations; and Total
Appropriations (Operating And Capital Improvement Projects);and filing of County
Communication No. 11-265; and Members, if we could allow Staff to make unsubstantive[sic]
changes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Council[sic], seconded by Member Victorino. Members,
any more questions? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Seeing none, Motion is carried. Eight ayes, one excused, Member
.Hokama.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of communication.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MR. KANESHINA: Does that authorization to make nonsubstantive changes include the other pieces of
legislation we passed out today?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, you heard Staff. I, I need your approval in regards to -COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the other three items that we brought up. So thank you for that no
objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We concluded our agenda for this afternoon. I know it was long, but I, I think
we accomplished a lot in the four itemized or agendized items. So with that, meeting is
adjourned.. . . (gavel). . .

ADJOURN: 6:04 p.m.
APPROVED:

P H P TANILLA, Chair
udget and Finance Committee
bfmin:120313:ctc
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